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1 OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 3 years
frcm £390m in 2020 ©
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number bf loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK




Chief Executive's review

Our Group was in a souc posiion corming cut of
the lockdown response to Cowid-19, anad our
busiress has continued to perform robusty

throughout the year This year has seen some

unforecasted growtn in value of certain divisicrs
primarily driven by the 'ncresse in enargy prices

Fern Trading Limited ("the Corapany” or togetner
with its subsidianes tne Groun’) targets cor sistent

arowlth for sharenolders over the long term, with 2
focus on steady and predictable growth, ths s

parucularly importat during rmo
economic corditors We Fave a diversiiies and
rrature cusiness befitting a Group witn more thar
12 years of racing h story and amoton Tre Grouap

comprizes more than 300 comrpanes that have

porated in a range of se2Ctors over many years
generating steady (o 3-term growth for our
sharebolders We aperate in essential sectors tnat
we expect 1o perform steadly throwgh markat

volatlity

crom tris secure base we have beer: ab.e o add
increrrartal expansion ard diversiication e 2
mMeassres way throung™ seeking out opporiurnies n
new adjacent secior: Theze sectors prevde ue
with a platiorm w contrue o expand n lne vt

our exsting strategy Today, our Group cornprses

enarQy, property ending, healthcare nfrastructure

fhre and house hu'lding dwvisions. We have grown
tobea Ewgnmcar‘.t oresence within aur most
ong 4.2% of the JK's

sorar energy and 1.7% of the U<'s anshore wind

estzblishes seciors, prod

energy cutpul, and bulaing 2 £2681m short ara
rrediom term lerdirg business that fac litates the

construction and irrprovercent of homes

Tre Company's share once deiverea Z0% growth
aver tre pact 12 morthis, well ancad of our target

Qf 4% growth per atnurm

is attnbutabie  our energy divison, which has

INCrease in tne vale of Gur energ Ty WIS DN OWas

supported by soid operationa: performance across
all sectors ang some Grganic growth N newer

We remaln a sunosrtive ermployer, win mao
1690 full-time staff across tne pusnesses that we
cperae, and 1Ind rect ernployment
for hurdreds more peocle trrough

)
Q
3
=
-
a
[
P
ta

hat we nave - place

A reflection on our year
rased £404m from investo

Cur busnes

celivaerea consistent revenues while grow ng
dep.oymert, resut rgr £712m norevenue
& Group (2021 £425m; ard net
v (2021 C1BR8m restated)

e financial staterments for the year siow z2n
operating proft before @x of F42m agzinst our
expecied ouxcore of a smal accountrg proal. Trs
rooust pesformante is 8 dwect result of energy
progused by e groun

being sold for higher prices
durng tre year. Almost 60% of

CLF SLSImess
COMPBIIES rerewatic energy generating assets such

as solar ene

gy sites and wird farms, wiich provice

lorg lermm revenue streams T hese are mte."i‘,;CD".a.N

oy

civer wCross a range of lmchnoiog es (o mingae

S

agamnst poor oerformarce N a speciiic secior ang

cortribue towards s
growth, howewver thelr vaiues can st ll be impacted
by cranges n pricirg anag derrand, We bave seen
consecdive ara matenal increases in long term

erergy price forecasts and energy forwarg rates
5 tre glokat

19 pandeic,

e
lobally over the last 15 rronics

sl

W2

ecorcmy recovers from the Covd-

ernative scurces of erergy as a result of

jat)
3
Q)
“
M
m
e
n
w

the confuct n Ukraine, Alorg witk infiat on, thess

factors nave materizly INcreazec tne vaiug of the
u




Chief Executive’s review

markets and starting construction on a

stralia. At the start of the yea

large wing
farrman Au rwe added
rine zdditional

wiich brinas us

stes 1o our reserve power divisiorn
LD o 26 sites in icompared To
20215, Thesze sites nave

Kelen
ten sites for most of
f expeciations, generatin

021, Eirr) dur ng the year

performed avead ©
EBITDA of £26m {

estaclshed bromass
division contndes to perform we. and has

delvered staple retums since acquesition in 2015

Our successful and weli-

Tras year, t have been particularly pleased (o se

15

srong performance at our naewest bicmass site ir
Snetterton, East A~gla
2021, proving to e a valuabe addit'on ¢ tne

. which was acquirec in Aonril

During the year we gurchased a Waste-

to-Erergy faciity currently Lnder canstruction in

Ayrshire. Tre facuity has been in developmert for

thres years and will be capable of procassing over
185,600 tonnes per a -recyclable
hrousenod, commercial and mrdustnal waste wnicn

to tlandbll or expored

AU of nen

would ctherwise be sent
This wil generate 17 MWe of low carbon electniciy,
erough to power 30,000 homes 10 will be the fizs:
large-scale. subs:dy free waste-to-energy project in
western Scotland and projecied cornsleuon date is

rearty 2024,

Over recent years, many of our energy assets have
peon undear corstruction which has contnbatec to
5. This is
typical of such businesses during grow:h phase
even when cash generative, because finance cost

Qur DFEV'“US _,/ repc oried ac Couﬂtmg

and accounting charges, such as depreciaion,
ceeded revendes. This division has now reachied

ou” target size and sector split

Accordingly this year 1 am pleased to report ar,
fit before tax of L48Bm agaimst qur
 accounting profit. This slightly

accounting pro
pudgeted em

larger than expected

the portfoio and higher energy prices; resulting in

orofit i due to the marurity of

ncreased revenus from our energy division as wel
5 explained below).

as an ncrease in inflation (3

S around
short and meaium
term secured loans 1o experienced property

Cur progerty lending business makes
27% of the Group and corprises
professionals T-us establshed part of our busicess
conunued to cerform well following a short period
of slow down duirg Covid 19 wnen we

nenionally chose woowrnte fewer loans. Our average

ican boolowas 182 loans this year o UX borrowe

ed at

leveals (below 70%), in

Qur lending drvsio
conservative loan to value

n nas always opera

orgder that it main
I5 @ reduction in o

ras served the Group v

tains access 1o valuakle security f

velues Tris strategy
vell since inception 12 years

“rough penods of change

nropert

ago, and L has operated
several imes. Tne Lroup 5 takmg a raturally
caulious approach when g5sessing rew lencing
opportunites in Lght of the changing economis
outicok. To date, the Group has lent £2 2o of

operty loans since ircepuen in 2010, suffering
only EEmM ir capital losses. This srong frack recory

s the result of cur careful approach in this sector,
compr-sing disciplined due diligence, conservative
‘can-o-value ratics and an ability arg willingreass to
reduce activity 10 this sector during times <
economic unceriainty. We will continueg to adopt
this aoproach throughout the coming year

The healthcare divisicn makes up around 4% of the
Group and s broadiy performing well Our
retrrement villages busiress, Rangeford Holdings
Limred "Range‘ord’) continued to sel aparuments
af three sites, commenced construction of a fourtn
wllage in Cherts
rear Cambr;—dge

ey, and acquired a fifth location
uring the year. Sales at tha

Chertsey site are expecied to commence i 2024,
wrile construction at the Cambrdge site s
expected o swart in 2022 with the frst sales

commencing in 2026

Cur fibre division was establshed n 2019 and
remains an area of growtr for the Group, now
compns.ng of six operating businesses. Sur

residential blsinesses, Jurassic Fibre, Swish Fibre,
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Giganet ana Alpoints Fiore are buiding u.rafast

"ﬁ'o 2 1o the premeces’ proachand networks r

reqions of the LK which have been overlooxed by
a

=
0
w0
i

raters. Giganet provides connechiviy

homes ard businesses across e UK usirg CityFibre
=
ard Openreach infrastrucidre arg Vinf is g software
Geve‘np ent comnany which ras developed

proprietary scftware @ allow Irtarne: Service
Fronsders o sed connectivity over wholesale enabled
networks, Includirg

Aldpoirte fibre Vorooss s the

UK's orly dedicated enterprise finre network (o fools

OnN providing cormettvity 1o tusiresses ir Lerdon

Irt the year, cur residertial bre b

contrued to invest Zapital N axpan
Jt canrd

g‘a'd‘ ana are riow arigoardng

= Home Cour

CUSTETEers fo thair netwaorke, geneaera atin g recurning

revenues for the Group Qur state-of-the-art

networks are gole o mreet customer demana for
fugner breackard s

speeds regured ac a res it of

rrore work ng-fromi -home and increased usage of

videos-om-cermand services. 'n London, Vorl:oss has
[ste

alzo cortinued to burd ana has instailed over
S00km of fibre wih a commirent to ofer 12Gbp:
y o 15.C

flire to up 200 susines

s in Cenral London

Whast cur fibre divisior remians in 2
years we do not exoect it 1o report,

an acoounting prof s

Towaras the end of the year we acded a now
p Orﬂrfy develope o the Growp, w ik the acgusition
f Eliviza Hornes ¢

stzbiished house blloer developing rd-

"Elwig"} for e85 Elvig s an

fDL

T arct

-

amiy hortesin Lorgon comrmuter [owns ard

WSod VeTy Sr

Wihe g reCreseE

YILEQES s na. part of tre
Group, we oiar 1o qrow 110 3 measwred wav ©
TTe mext Pve =

620 homre

PEZTS OWITH A0 LT ma

JEMSISINS dewe'

ang 200 regh guality

sftordabic homes, Emﬂa A5 A 50oNg exishirg
]

leadierst. are xey to rurring the cusress

Inflation and Interest rates
Tre higher rate of inflaten expenenced this year

haz been respersisle for some of the
outperte

Company's shac price. HM Treas

SIMAEnce aga nst expecianions in the

Jry forecast that
ngn infator is akely to be present until 2025, as 2
result we expect to rece ve more revenue for the
ensrgy generated witnin cur erer gy gvizon, atd a
nt subs dizs that

oM, ncreasing

hughier value from tre governm

-
—n

sorme of our energy sites benghr

tre value of those sies. H
fugn 1mflatio
on e rate gt which the Groug is expecied to grow

waver a short per.cd of

rsuch as forecast has very little effecrt

Triz s because e renewable enegy s tes we owr

derive ther value from ciscourted orojecied fature

Cas”

we over the time they are expecied to

cperate for typ cally 20 years or
outlook for lang tcrm inflanar we

irroact or our share price shoula b

£ pustive

hecause T woud imcrease the reverye each of cur

sites woulld expect to mmake, 1 contrast w a

reiatvely fixec cost base

The expected rser ineresi rates is forecast ©
return 1o normal after a significant perod oF very
\ow rgteEs. The irmegiate mpact 0° thes o our

busines: € expacted w he oroadly neutral since

our Grews s inmntonaly structured so as not to

EXoENeCE 5 gn*cam VILA & Wi nicrest

We continug to taxe 3
approach withir our lend'r.g bus ness where [ne
irg nterest rates are felt more Closely, and we

have the ak Uty 10 reduce the nur-ter of loars

we write, or alter the ris< profile of our loans

trraugn redutirg han o va'ue ralios

zcty byin cerfan pars of the marke smouid that

tan
feel approonate
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Chief Executive’'s review

Current trading and outlook
Since the year end, the Group has continued to
perform steadiy from an operational perspective
and n ling with our excectatiors albet we have
rshare orice growt~ akhead of target due to e
con umd increase v long term erergy pree
f(“(e: stz Our growth targers for the Group over
the medium ard long term remain unchanged, ana
we continue o focus on ma ntaining a dversif ed
business that 1s capatle of delivering more

oredictabie growth tor sharehcicers.

Th lectnicity Gererator Levy
EGL within the 2023 Fmarce 3t will nave an

iy

recerntly announced

Mipact o e returns generatad fram our energy

cortfcao over the next 5 yesrs Tnis s ‘Lriher

discussed n the group france review on page 27,
Our progerty lending business contnues to
erform sirongly, with increasea dep.oyrrent in this

sector snce the year end, We focus on skort term
wars (our average current loan term < 17 months)
wich enables us to adapt to changes in outloox
awiftly we feel trs

5 partcdlarly important in the

current econarac chmate

Performance i cur heatthcare division continues
i be stapie, and we continue to reman postive
about the opporturites 1o 1rprove performandce in

3 secTor

Since yveas end, we have contnued 1o buld out cur

fibre metworks, with consiructior tracking in kne
with our exgecialons, We continue to review

opporiunivies for hoth orgarvc and inorganic

growth suoporting our existing managerment eams
N delverng this srategy

In Decemper 2022 we have acquired the rights to
£25m of right to use mobile licenses from Toree
UK, ithus making tre first step towards becoming an
rriabile virtual retwork coerator

Cur mux of business areas bas develoned over tire
and may evolve furtner over the years abiead, driven
oy the overarchng imgortance we place on
rneeling the objectives of our sharenaiders This
shouwd not pe
change i the sectors in wh'ch we operate, but as a

read as any indication of a whoiesale

reflection of the role played oy the siraleg
mandate i protecing sharenoders' interasts,

ur mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do
Ferr Tradirg am

red PFers’) s e parent company

"Groun) Our
Grodp oparates Y,
Festthcare, lerdirg, fbre and rouse buiding. Over

of nearly 220 su

the pact twelve years we have built a cafefulty
dwersifed -p of operau~g businesses that are
well DQS‘UOHE&C} to) delvar long-term valueg and
predctable growh for our sharerolders.

1. Energy division
s and
sell the erergy produced eitner directy o mdustrial

We generaie power frorm sustainable sours

consumers of 1o large networks Many of our

renewalye 2nergy e Gually {or goverrment

Ncertives, winen raprezest an addincral sodrce of

L\)

ncome. We have also ublised our experise

recewahle encrgy to construct facilities for sale o
nocr: 9 operation At year ena the Group had

21 5 les unoer consruchon.

2. Healthcare division

We proviase homes ana laisure facilites (o our

againg popllation, ana privare oo tals

provide higrni-guasty healt

Care ServICas across

operatioral sites in the UK

3. Lending division
We lend on a short and mediur ternm, s

510 a large rormber of property profess
We alzo provide Irancing 1o enable othar hunine

ential z2nd

4. Fibre division
We owr and operate fibre Broadband networ=s

Cross vancus areas of the U< We tuils the
ihem W neres and

NMENWST<S angd conng
ovide aur customiers with lorafast

filbre b"()EGt"a’Td

5. Home building division
Du‘fm e yesrn, we sucresshully entered the Mouse

Glilding sentor, acguinng Elvia Homes which has a

-

>'Uorg \r:::;k record Of deve.oping nores In g

ustairacie manner. The company isa
properly develeper, mear g it or

from the design, 1o the eng neer rg and then nal
construclion to ersusc tre aeovery of qualty

WOorKTnanznig

Solar, wind,

) Property lending, Retirerment Ultrafast fibre . .
la?igmlaﬁ‘s development villages, private broadband across Resrd;jfg:jhouse
gas. financing hospitals the UK g

reserve power
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Cur business at a glance

The sirengiht of our Groug's strategy s in both its businesses with comprehensve busiress plars and

operationa. dwversity and the return profile of tnese sirong managément teams. This erables us o
pusmnesses Our lencing husiness providges flexibility continue o aiversify our busingss withaut
and sureng returns over the short ternr, whille our coTpromising on the qualily of our operations,

encrgy. healthcare, finra ang home buidng Ower the past throe years, we have successfully

giv-siors cffer visioliity and stabiiity of returns over ertered the hiore broaoband sector and we now

the wornger term OWN SiX Cormpanies with exciung plans o deliver

- ‘ . ultrafast broadband across the UK
The zcaie of our cusiness 5 & key strength, eraniing s -

Us 0 acquire large-scale establisned operat.ons a:
well as the opportunity to enter newy sectors with
minir-al risk o the whole Grouo by selecting :

Healtncare 1%

Sector split’

Wind 22% |

Property 27%

Fern’s sector
allocation

—~- Reserve power 2%
~-Solar 1%

~- Fiore 5%

Solar 20% - 7

Healthcare 4%

’ - .
Reserve power 6% - | - Lanofll gas and oicmass 9%

|
Other 3% 7

B Owning and operating assets 69%
BME Lending 31%

“Sector splitis given by value, as represented or the company baance sheet of Fern Trading Lirnited
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Our business at a glance

Whore we operats

ud that tre cus neszes

coup rrake a positive

DLLGn o saeiety, from

generating clegn erergy to the %_

creation of hornes and the provision
of quatity ~ealt~care nfrastructure

,,
Q)
e
a
=r

WG
ar
g
o
a3
o
o

Biomass power stations

XN A YOI
(&)
3
1]

-
~

By

o
=
8]
3
0]
n
&
2
o
B
)

As we've grown our expertse In these
t

e
take OUr eXpert se T exCUrg Coportanit £z oversesas, 1" C.ud NG CoTSTLCling 5.8 ant wena farms i

Austrata. france, Ireland, Pelano ang = nlarc

cean asle to use our 1mdustry knowied

et
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference
We are proud to operate a Group that makes a
osllive contrbuiicn o society across the UK,

generatng renawable energy, provicing quality

infrastruciure ard retirerment living anc

23
o
&3
=
Ry
s
o
=
6]

aelivermg mgh -speed broackand 1o underserved
areas of the courtry

Energy
We currenty own 220 energy sites, preducing
375CGW a year Thal's encugh energy to power over

arillior homes

Cur corbination of technologies solar, wird,
s ard iandfil gas
Felping the UK o

cather,

LServe power, Lioras

CPmpL ~ent each other well,

meet its energy targess rrespecive of the w

The Ferr Commrunity Fund s a social enterprise rin
by the Group, which wor<s (¢ distnbute corr“munif-»,f
funds generated from our wird farrs Tnis year, the
Fern Commurity Fund has swarded £1.4m ¢ loca,
cormmurnity groups, sugocriad
students tnrouagh our Student Scholarsh.p Fund,

and oroviced a winter fuel subsidy to 706 resinents

t3icca. un versity

wnhio are local to tne Group's assefs

Healthcare

Cur retrement villages grovide high-guatity,
contemporary living spaces, with 379
accommadauor unite currertly In place, and
schemes in vanous stages of development offering
over 500 addtional accommaodation units

A friendly community 1s at the rneart of our
elirernent villa
developmerts we grovide central facilities and a

ges, whith g wihy in our

hub of social activity for our residents.
Lending
The loans we made durng the year have nelped ©

fund the constructicn of stude-t accommaodation
and much needea rezidental procerties

We continue o exterd loans to 24 tax: drivers and
fleets to erable them to use eleg

Lon emiss

¢ vehicles,

redlcing car iors in our cama\

Fibre

Through our fibre division we are buliding out the
Aore optic broadband network across the LK, Four
of cur management teams are focussad on
building out fiore opfic oroadband networks for

residentiat customers ana srealt businesses, and a

afthois bulding a fiore nebwerk o deliver enterprse
connect vty Our sxthis a

company operating in the fibre secor and

soifiware developmert

providing services Lo our group cormpacies

iCCcreate g
il

Within s dwvision we Fave plans
retwork prowdmg connecthiviy 1o aver one
propertes in the next three years, rmany of which
are in snrall towns and villages that don't cutenty
have access to

working ard communicating

Irternet connectivity Ffor mocern
Ways O

our fibre busines
erved comrrunities, thay are

fNot only are ses kringing
connect vity to urders
also gerneratng employment opportanices for
young ndiv.duals via tra ning academies and
apprenticeship schemes, and are driving diversily in
Telecoms, wih cne of our comoparves having
launiched a number of iniatives 1o recrult waormen

into the sector

Home building

Sur home bullding drasion utlises a h'gh
proportion of sustamabie timber frame construction
methods and installs air source heat pumps in all
propertes, leacing the way in this sector and
helping recuce carbon 2risiions.

it
e :
s
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Our strategy in focus

Our businosses ;
Energy :

Througn our ener
el

renerated rugaear retlrms thic year than expeciad

o

fdwision, the Croup owns and cue 1o mgrket condit ors but crucaily o hias the

operates energy s'tes wnich sunply gas and

potental to provide siable eturms over the long-

elecinoty nto the network, as well as construciing term Tnis comb:nation $ key 10 our strategy to :
renewable energy sites for future sale OF tf“e 220 I balance nck ard return acrass the range of Greup :
energy sites that we own and operate, 194 provide activities to generate target retuns for snareholeears
rerewsble energy, contributing o the Group's

posiucn as oneg of the largest producers of “Our energy sites generated over ’
3,750 GWh of power.” :

rerewable energy from cormmercial scale solar stes

ir the UK Energy sres are typizally expected to

generate stacle profivs for many years. as suchk Due 0 tre hgh-qualty energy sites we own, we :
[sxigliglet ard ape ratig these > husimesses s dtractive are aole to secure org-term Ansncng from '
to the Group becadse of trer potental 1o celver rianstream backs al compattve rates o enhance
predictanle profits over e long erm oour returas, which ~clps us o deliver the levas of !
returrs cur shareholders exoect. 11

Renewahle energy sites generate power from

‘ranle sources and scll energy proauced either

2 hite our renewable erergy business started life in

directly 1o large industr'al consummiers or 1o the | tne solar energy secor, the Group has bullt |
newwork Masy of ourrencwatle erergy ses aise | axpernise across other adjacent technologes 5

qual fy for government incaentives, which resuts in a INclLding orsirGre wing, biomass and :andfill gas,

poruon of the generaied energy benedticg from supnorted by reserve power parts which orovide

rates that are "oc

ked ' {or a specifiec penod once backuo power to the Natora: Grid Toe Sroup

a qualifying sie s operavoral and accreditation has

teretore benefts fron d versiiication witnn tris
NN drd Thaye mee e NP .
been grarted This Pes recuced some of Ne IMD3CT 1 pary of ite business, simce weaker corduons “or i

of tme velati yn .ong--term STergy price forecasts energy Crvdu‘_ on from ore techpoiogy ofter resint :
Az new sites built in the UK do not guabfy for i i stronger progLcucn elsewhere The Groud also :

Risteric government imoemUIves, we are Leerg more

gans sigrufcant pareft from its scale in this secto :
as our DLsTess ¢ soread across over 220 sites,

irrerest . othe rrarket for stes like the ones we own

and onerae : .

and cperate 1 oyastly reducing the rsk to Group profitablivy if one |
Dote o fie : o :

Owring ang operatrg enargy stes s a core part of | S1€ SUFErs an ogeratonst dlsupton

i currertly makes up almost 60% of

S NG
tre Group's net assets Thes part of cur Groun has

Did you know? |
If laid end to end, ocur solar ,
panels would stretch from
London to Mexico City.
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Qur strategy in focus

I addion to our JK sites, the Croup 1s deve.oping
stes overseas, rijurisdictions that we understand
well, These present an attractive opporiunity as they
DLILG ©N CUr SeCtor expert s& n countries at an
earlier stage cf renawable developmrent. Currentiy
we operate wine farrms in Irela~c and France and
sotar sites in Frarice and Australia. We have several
wind sites urder construction i Foland, France

ard Australia.

LU ng tre year we acquired nine reserve power
piants and one energy from waste site Following
construction, we sold two wind farms in Fnland and
shoriy after the year end we alsc sold Danington
Point, a iarge sciar siten Austratia

Healthcare
> division. tne Group
medizal and retiremert fving

Throlgh our heaithcare
ogerawes in the privae
seclors. Our retrement tying business, Rangeford,
OWniS ana operates bwo reurement villages in
Wiltsture ard Nort Yorkshire anc 6 currently
developing three furihier sites for future operations,

Healtncare owns
in Kentand

Our privale medical business, One
and operates twe orvate nospitals
Hertfordshure, providing the very best tevel of carc
N mMacarn, wel equ pped noskital facilities,

Since retuning 1o normal working patterns we have
seen 2nncrease ir the number of oatients pay'ng

for thair owr treaiment as they face |
asts for NHS treatmert, Descite the ifting of

widespreag re
5 to

MU WAL rH“‘f‘

trictons across the UK, Covid-19
contiriue acute care sector with a
strezsed

measJdras that reman in gace.

reased Infection control

Lending

Lending contirues ta be 3 core part of our business
vided the Croup witr a
rative secior over the past twelve years.

and has oro profitable and
cash gene
This vx.H estanlist

ed part of our Groap ma.rly

conzists of property lending, whon provides
shor-terr financing to expananced professional
procery developers, buy-to-let
pridgirg fimance, and development hinancir;
which providas snort ard madium term finarcing
{C companies

tlandiords seekmg

&

A key benefit of the scale of our Group and of the
ousiness that we have buit ug in ths zector 1s our
ability to mingate risk through having a8 large

rumer of short ang med.um term icans soread
acress small profects to individual borrowers. We

proactively manage counterparty rnsks through
undertaking careful corrower due difgence, taking

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided

the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

ecurity over assets rypicaily o a [rst charge bas s
e ratio:

and maintainng conservatve toamao-vau > 13t
Not all ioans v

al perform as expected and nese

MEasures welp o minimise the impact of
erformanrce 1ssues or an ndricua. [oan This s

further rmitigateq through e vawe that we lena o

individual corrowers, reative

which s Currently spread on average across 182

[Can:, Wit an average maividua: ican of £2 37,

Fibre division
Cur finre division inciudes

comiparies oulding finre networks in the UK and
one software de

slopment company

”‘rur" our res dental Fiore pus-es

bulding rew orysical fbre aetwvaorks for

comrrmuriities in the UK ana so far nave buslt out
fiore .nfrazlructure in underserved parts of Deavon,

So~arset, Dorset, Wisrire, Hampsn re,

Worgestershire ana the Home ¢

aiming to pass cver one million homes aver e
next three vears

Buitding these large netwo ks invalves connecting
large datacerntres and te

hone exchanges n the

UK with homes and busine

i

effectivey

S
replacng the copoer weres tnat were lad in the first

Fai® of the 20tk certwury Jurassic, Swisk and
Cigaret are verticaly integrated. as they ooth own
the Sbre infrastruc

custoTer relatonstip ac the internel service

rd alse nave the enc

to qur total loan book,

owider or "ISFT Allpoints owns Bbre infrastrucoure

and wil ontoard other 1SPs o the Alpoints revwork

to 3. Connecviy 1o the end cuzomer

3 network n
("BZB
anterprise connectivity direct 1o business

os3 Fas installed ovar 50Ckm of
“e oplic cabies in Lordan since 2020 ard nas

Trrough Vorposs. we are sunding

Lomaon to s-_ip\,t/ business-te-business

ustomers Yerb

e
recen -ylawc'f dasw ngle

10Ghps product o
rrarket, recognising that ambitcus London
buciresses wl quickwy reguire more than the 1Ghps

}f
cornecty ty they've relied o o g

We have seen rend growt i cur fibre divisian
srce 2018 and we expect s division 1o contiruse
Lo pecorre g larger narl of our bustress over fime,

pects 1o spend approximately S1bn of

capita. by 2025 o fulfiiits kuild plans ard reacn

The Group ex

mQre comrursies 1 need of Litratast broadband.

Home building
Cur méw Fome bulding basziness, Elivia iz a full
service housebuloer, acquinng land, develop rig the
cite, and sulbsequériy selling the romres to

Trese wtes in

irciviaual bayers wClude armex of open

marker anc affordalle rodses ard strive 1o deliver
Rigr quality aspratonal rormes. Thne basiness is
growing fast with projected annual turnover of
£250m arc 600 bolses gullt per yoar forecacts:

within the rexs 2-3 year

)
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directars for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business actities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham o0 2 0 0

Paui ic Cnief Executive of Fern and s responsiole for e day-to-oay ranning of the

business, e is also a managing director of Octopds Investmerts Limitea (O,
where he has workes snce 2005 Ol s 2 key suppler of resource and axperise
to Ferr Paul's dual role ensures that this relationship works effectively and in the
pest nterests of Fern's sharehclders. Paul has had various general management

and interna: consulting roles across & number of sectors anc brings witn Rim
a wezth of industry ard business experience

W Helth Willey o s 0 D

& Ketn s oan associate professor of strategy and entreprensursiip at London

Busimess School He also hodds varous nor-executive direcrorships and advisory
roles at hign growth and more mature camparies. 11 his role as non-executive
chairnan be is respons ble for the effective operation of the Board, as well
as its governance He orngs o the Fern busness independent commierciat
eiperience gained from ris ume ir academia, private eguity investment,
consuting and varicus hands-on operat onal roles,

Petoar Barlow o0 00 e om0
Peter nas over 30 years' experience in nternaional inancing of infrastructure and energy
As a senor exenutve for intermational Power, Peter was resnonisible for arranging over
$120r of project and corporate funding, as well as bankirg relatonsrips and treasury
activties He nas spent over 20 years working internationally for HSBEC, Bank of
Amenca and Nomura, financing acguisinons ard greenfield projects in the energy
anc nfrastructure sectors. His combirgtion of Board-level financing and e~ergy
experience cvar NUMerous energy sut-sacicrs, and his al-rouns krowledge of
all the secters in which Fern operates, adads significant value to the operghion of
tre Board as well a3 its strategy forrration and deployment

Tim Avthur ~ 00
Tirr is a chartered accountant with more thar 25 years internstiona: experience
as a finance director of bath public and private companes. intially he worked
for Price Waterhouse ir Birmingham and Chi.cago. More recently he was Chief
Financial Officer of Lightsource Renewable Energy Ltd, 2 giobst leader in the
furding, developrrent and long-term opération ¢f solar photovoitalc projects
Tirn brings extensive financial and accountancy knowledge to the Board as

wel. as an understanding of dynamic technolcgy businesses gaired from ris
axecutive pos tions,
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risls

Management identify, assess and manage rsks } The principa. risks that the Group are exv\ﬁed to
associated with the Group's bus ness ob.ectives and & are described telow, aicng waih the minigaing
sfrateqy. Kisks arise from external sources, hose Poactions we take to reduce ihe ooenta. irrpact of

wh'ch are inherent corrmercia ns<s in the markel, 1 the nsk We aiso include our assessment of wralner

and from operationa: risks contanad within tre i tre lkelnood cf the risk has inCreased, decreased
systems and processes ampt ’_)j'—"—j wath i the oorremained the same

tre Group througn he dsversmcatwon of actvies,
both by sector and geography ;

Energy Di\ilsiorl

Risk Mltlgatlons Change

Market rlsk « Contracts are entered 1into whicn T theincomre for s
The enerqgy sector is exponencing cortuon of the energy generated by ouar sires
;mrlfgm turbulerce and thera s » Lorng-term governmen: bacxed offtake aqrmr_"*(-ﬁ% ae

risk that forecast leves of ncome

sdch as ine Renewable Cragaton Cerrfic
are Not achieved due to charges in 30% of our energy iNcome was
whoiesale energy pnces. off take gereratad from ROC revenue

ConTaECTs Or goverament subsidies,  » We engage with tne goverrment and the Office of Gas arid
Cue o his wirbulent environmaent, sty Markets ("OFGEMT tC con 1o an ircLstry voice
tne potentai for increased with policy makers whao set future reguiatory regurenrenrts.
neryenton by the
3.

Changes m Govarrrment policy
may resull i reduced reome
strea™s withir the grous dug o
acdticnat evies.

Operational risk: - L pr":-mab \t)/ cf ‘h: weatner m-tlaated H“'oud"

Levels of energy produced may diversificatior of technologies 2 ﬂd ocatio :

e lower tnan anucipatea due to « Regular servicing of < Cff*s 5 unnmtao:r‘ to ensure assets e
sub-optirmal weather conditons are ‘« ptin good cond ton and rrararmise the nck that N m )
or performance 's3ues ‘-,'v’itﬂ assets are unavai.able ‘or a ongar panod. Mo ehenge

equ»pmwﬁ Wi ich rmay result n
j\ 1fcant ur‘p anned downrtirea,

Fmancml risk: .
Reverues
:emcra‘\or’:i ]

from tne

3 smrail portor of the Groug's
cected w ke derives from &

to volanie - X

o oyer .
from cuers rioverr.ents)

cxpecteds due to fluctuations
foregn exchangsa rames

Construction risk: . T'v: Gresp eners Axed crnice conracts v

Canstruct on of the veriere anpropriaie 1o reduce expos.are 1o inc i

SO Cnan

St
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Markel risk: .
cxpacted saes from custormers

are lower than anfic puf--ad due o
ncreased corrpetit on from otner e
CrovIgers

Managemert reg slarly reviews the compeutive landscape
intarget build areas to ersare plans do not conflict with
oter alternative netwaork gperators
Managemert engages proactively watn tre Offce of
Cc—mmumca“'-ms and the Government to ensare the
enefts of smaller opearators are weil understood and i
Jterpfﬁ e anpropriztely represenfed.

InCreased

A change in policy by e (dus o rore

regulators in favour of largmr

» We are g1 acuve participant in relevant industry nodies. COMPEntars i
operators could impact o . L P i the market)
1c deliver planned developrent particulary th representing altenanve network

_ SOerators
reducing revenues and efficiences @e >
gainec from a larger presence in a
parnc Har area.
Constructlon rssk +« Tre Group has contracted with a number of differant

WD suppliers te reduce the expcsere to ary one indrdual
entity Selectior of cutsource partners is managec
through a detalled procurement process with long term

wisibility of wark allowing cartners to plan financiat and

Corztruction of the net
takes | ongr—v QIS maore f.'ostly

Mzn gnucipatcd due to resource
veilabuty or increased cost of

Increased [due
to Increasng
demanca for
resource In

ravw rmalerigls

DEOPIE TeL0Lrtes aCcording.y

e secior as
alternative

s Where sunply chan r,-robEr—*rfs are expecied for criecal ‘
e b « nebwor
oras oL ) rera e Hmonths stock anre ne
iterns our teams generaly hay months stock of a1 oroviders scale
duct and cther materials on hard, and advance order build)
tefhn at =qu pmm’wt\mfh lu‘g lead vrres
Operational risk: « Gur networks are bulit in a resilient way with diverse
NEtwWOrK service s iwrarrustef} ar route options showld a falure occur in one route fe o
unrelable leading o ootental loss Thiz, corroired wath an abiity © :centify and reso've No -
; change
of custcmers and reputatloﬁat correctivity issues guicly. menirises downtime of the o change
darnage ratworks

%& ‘&:“ ’H*g

. §
*%%&z:t::m:*:w e ,»Ef&"g
St pilrion [ERE M e T
= 2 ghe H T “1ms°»ﬁa’#&r»«.xd*wifgz;

R 33 SREREETE
Srun : i BN GRhThy < IS OTN A
o o it
£

Sk %
By tbreii

iy e Fad i mmumze
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Principal risks and uncertainties

R|sk Mitigations Change

e Ak e D L T I TRV e RO TS 7Y S e M RS KBRS E R A e T PSR Sh kg TSR TR b e © X XBOATRES §A9 g e T T EOR D

Market risk: s Theteams pm-;zrrw Carage oJur pesiton In tne

nicreasing inf ator and irterast narkemniace ard ace precared to erforce where needed f

rates leas 1o & rmarket-wide & loan moves intG defadit,

affordability scue, resulirgin a = Our loans are mads at conservalive loan-1o-value [.TV) m
drop in property va.ues aceoss all ratios with a maxomom | TY of 70%

No change
sectors of real estate This may 2

impact our all, ity o recover g
war in full through a refnance

or _mJﬂ
Counterparty rlsk . *gwmt physical urderiyi~g secunty.
Lcans may be rmade 0 unswiable ver the nroparty ¢ &f the

counerparties, lm.ﬁk_tm aUr CLYPICaTy O 3 Charge basis o .
aviliy to recover the (oan patanue easure rraxgmurn cnance of recovery shoula enforcerment ,\%@

o full azlion be rescad.
« Thorgugh aue duigence is perforrmed prior to

creased cLe
LQ unstable
eroncMmic

loarns, .mdud-mg property Grlaro vaiuat ons ar
ctecks dong o0 b:)frm«*r; climats;
« \VWhere loars are wiitten © sounder censtrychan.
COVENANTS are Dutin tdce s}

piete Crior 1o !

WEEWIS

 Healthcare/Home Building Divisions
Rlsk Mltlgatlons Change

Market risk H—Iealthcare and . Pta'm g consents on Lf‘dc‘/el.')r-eﬁ 131d are opt mised 0

Home Building): raxiT se revenues and reduces tha nsk of | ‘%

A fallin house prices could ncreased due
mpact our aglity 0 generaie o urstae
expecied revenue ffromthe sa e eCororic
of apartments in 0. ret rerent chmate:

villages ara houses bult by Siv 2.

Construction risk (Healthcare » The Groupn

enters fixed price contracts where approorniate
and Home Building}): to regice exposure I Inreas.ng mater al costs o
Cornstruct-cn takes 'onger of « Thne Grouap only wors wi™ reputab.e 3rd pariies witk a wE
S MOre GOty than annic patedd =trong rack record of deliver'ng siviar orojeats, NG cnange
due "o rescurce avallatiuty or
Nfeabe P Cost of raw natenals.
Health and Safety risk » The Groun mariar: robust policies ard preocedures
{Healthcare): relating (o the 0egws Gn OF e wices We rey ew this
The greventon of imjury o trrowgh concLct rg regular nernal rinectors, and dre
avoidabie icss ¢f L2 o cur .80 sub ect W exterral INspesuore by rcg fatory boges i
Daterts s of utmost importance + Tne Croup hasimsurance oche 2217 place o cover s
ana s cntical to mamtaming a Franoal losses due 1o nedical ma practice clams N3 cnarge

Gocd recutat ¢ Liuigaticn as
aresult of medical raipracio
~




Mitigations Change
Market risk: « Where floatirg rate deot s i place {where ntorest varies
Aninciease in baSﬁ\ rawes may N ine witk ar undaerbyng benchmark rate), the Group %
nerease fr)Cta on debt faail ties, eniers into hedging arrangements to fix a poruon of thasa Iricreane
Irapzcung the Group's ability © payments trrecughout the terr of the facility. Heaging e o

service dent as i1 fails due. arrangements are outhned in Mote 21 of the financial interest rates
ffaterr.ertr

Liquidity nsk « A detailed cash fuv\, fomfast IS prepares arc reviewed
Poor management of casn withir by managemenrt on 2 monthiy basts, incorporatng ¢ash
e Group could impact the avaitability and cash reguirements across the Group. On &t
oLP's ability to meeat obligatons least a quarterly basis this1s shared with the Board.
s they fall due. » The Group mortors Dan< covenants on an ongoing bag B

. e
G ensure conunuad adnerence 10 covenants Where

covenants can't be mes {orecasts are updated for the
lower cask ava lable as a resuls of the restrictinn.

» The Group has a flexice 9rance facility which can be
arawn on at shori notice to mest ‘mrmediate busimess

NG change

needs.

Health and Safety risk: - We bauc deve. uued shust I“egttb dnd a." Ty poiicesir

The safety of our employees cormpiance with 15C45001 across tne Group to ersure

anc thosze employed trough the weil-being of our staff

contracts are of paramaount « Health anc safety training is providea to our staff and

irmportance There s a ns< that conractors an a regular bass. Increased
accdents in the workgiace could

result in senQus injury or ceatn

Cyber Security risk: .« We Dr**p\oy a CHIE Ir‘fhrma won Secunty OfFicer ("CISQ"

An attack on our 'T systerns and wha is responsibie for data secanty scress the Group and

cata could lead to disruphon reports quarterly to the Board. _—

of our operatiors and loss of « The CISO works ciosely with our businessas to ensure s
customer data. Logs or misuse adequate standaras of security ang irformation MNo change
of data may resultir reputational management are met

damage, requlaory action urder « £ach of our businesses that hold custorer data has ther

GDFR and potential fines owr dedicated resource for ‘T and security

The swalegic report was approvec by ine Board of Direcicrs on 16 December 2022 and sgned on ¢z behaf by

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 172 (1) statement

The 3oard consider that they have ad-ered © the : Group acauiced a larg ale. reaqy o construct

requirements of section 172 of the Comparues Act & wind site 0 Australa his ceployment angns

2006 {the "Act™), and nave, i good faith, acred 1 3 with the Croun's sirategy 1o continue 1o :
way tha” would be most likely 1o oromdate the develop enewatie energy Sites which oroviae §
fthe Group for the benefs of Ity members red ctalile, longerm revenyes sreams The §
(having regard to all stakenc.ders ard Board considered the cpporiunity and how it
matters set out in section 172111a-f; of the Act) alignied with cur obiectives to make a posit ve 5

in tie decisions taken duing tne year endad contrbution ¢ the community and ervironment
20 June 2527 : - i
e Thne Group dec dec to expand intc © !
In the perfermance of iz daty to o divisior, house tullaing in May 202 ‘
suCcess o the Groun, the Soard acquired Zhivia Forres '
numkber of matiers, incluoang the loper. prowdirg i
consequance of 37y genikions nthe ong werm, ard to the engreenng and theny inal construction
lzens to the views ol the Gf)up\) xey slakencliders to ensure tre delivery of quality workmanshis |
to bund trust and ensure  fully undersianos the Diversifying the Group's asset base and enter ng :
potentizl impacts of the decsions it makes, Tne -tz this new secior has been well thoughg
Board fulfus triese duties partly by delegation 1o cut with long feqm growthom ming, The Board f
commitiees and tre boards of subsdary assessed the straicg C opoortanities withn tae !
unaertakings, wno operate within a corporate secior before deciding to rmove ahead with this
governance framework acrass the Group, acquisticon, consdering how this woulg impact 3
. exIstng Lusimesses witrin the dv sion and how i
At mvery Board meeting a review of health ans : - ;

) : it alignea witt the Grous's strateqic oboctves o
safety acrots the group, financias and operatonai : T . ;
: delivar long-term value and pregictable growh

erformanca. as well as legal and regulatory

T‘

: ]
‘ : for our sharekolders. !
comgliance, s urgertaken, Tre Board also review : :
Orer areas over the course of the financia. year I e Reyewing anc dec Lo move anead w i E
ncluding the Group's pusiness stralegy, key rsks, ncreasing mwomass oceraliors which s part o 3
sigkenoider-related matrers, diversity and inch Tl FENEWSN S GV 5.0 In Q ohar 2021 the :
orwroamenial matters, corsorate respornisib iy, ang e scale, waste-to-erergy ?
governarce, cormpuance a~d egal matters i Scetand Tnis decioyment !
: . . i
N . - . b 5's strate > CCntnue o i
Principal decisions : 9y o :
Ny o H lop renewadle energy i
We define prmf pal decsions taken oy the Board ac ) :
. ) : red ctabe long-term !
e of 5 strateg’c nature and : ;
: Loovide resiignce ggainst ‘
cart oo ary of our key stazenoder : : ‘ ) :
: whiolzsale prong Ccnarges o tne JK energy i
Wing ars : 0 ; ' :
: marxet  he Board consicored the opportanity :
o7e tmade i e year
: N4 now it aggred wiltr cur

: MGRe 3 00s Hve COr nhunon to the commurity
dwn P anaenvrormant |
5 part o ;

our renewabies divis on. e August 2021 the :
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Corporate governance

« Tre board decided to change audit irms via 3
tender process for the year ended 30 June 2022
The Group had changed =ign.ficantly since the

GrevICLS auditors werg appom%‘ and therefore

we were unabe to reliaby azsess the value for

roney we receved Trree ﬁffns undenswent

the tender process and Ernst & Yourg LLP were
ected because of ther strang commercial

uncerstarding o our business, efficient audit

rmethocelogy and vaiue for money.

Business strategy
Our business strategy is s21 oul on pa; s1ito £ of
the Strategic Report,
detalec Group budget whicn s apor

Managemert preparas g
r*ij by the
Board on an annual basis and forms tre bagis for
the Group's resource planning and dep.oyment
decisions. Ir making decisions concerming the
business gian, the Board has regard first ang
forerrost to s strateaqic focus, but also to other
rmatters such as the \nterasts of its various
stakeholders and the long-torm mipact of is

actions on the Group's future and reputation,

Sharehoiders
Shareholder relations and gererating sharehalaer
value is a key consideration wren the Board i
making strategic cecisions. T ke prime medium by
wrilch the Graup comrmun cates with sharehoiders
is through tne annual report and financeal
statemerits, which aim to provide sharehowders with
a full understanding of the Groug's activities and it
resuits This information is published on our website

at www . ferntrading.com

Employees

The Groug's employees are fundamental 1o the
verall success of the business, The Directors fulfil

their duty to employeses by eqtrusting oversight o
ubsidary Boards wh.ch the Chief Executive of the

Grouc a.sc sits on

The direcicrs of the subsighary undertaxings

manage the day to day decsion making,
engagement and communizations with employees

and ersure that people are treated fairly and are
enehz anc conditions
loyees with 1o be

matters aﬁcctzng ther

valued with respect t2 Day, b
We fuily realise that Gur emp
informed znd consulted on
wars 2and tc e invowed in problem-soiving
aftecting ther owr areas of inferést and

respons Sility The Group is irmiy committed (@ a

all levels and we
Stantly
tﬂmourqgec the cpen flow of information anda

ideas Fre ludes monthy team briefings

ata iccal evel

policy of good commurnrcaton at
aim to establish a cumate whicr con

ently th mcl
and the puciicaton of rronthly key
perforrance rdicators covering outpul, operating

costs, and health and safety.

The Fealth and safely of cur emiployaes in the

workplace 1s a continual focus for the Group, given
its broad (\Derational DUSINESS,
Health & Safety Report ng ar each board meegung to

policies and procadures

The Direciors review

re in

[at)

ensure apo ropna
place 1o protect the he
ernployees a~d contractors. Wnere there are

aith ard safety of cu
potential defciencies o ssues, these are folowed
Lp and resclved on a with the 3oard

havirg cversight of the actions taker,

A timewy bass,

Tre Groun autscurces activities ard management
Lsuppliers
i the Board ensuras

of certain oceratienal act vite
Where activities are cutsourced
that they are managed by reputabie supphérs who

mreet all the relevant industry and regulatory

o exerng

comimitments as well as treatirg empioyees fairly
Expected standards are documeniad in all service
contracss and adherence to these are conlinually
mroritored by Board through therr service

agreement with Octopus Irvestments Limted.

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts 1 a fair manrer wih all suppliers
and customers and seexs o mamtain stvong
business relationships with therm This s achieved
by all contracts being negotiated through a fair and
transparent tender process which includes
assessing the impact on tne long-term objecives of
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Corporate governance

tre Grolp, We review owr payment processirg
UMes agdinst Contracls every s mornths to ensure

2 pald prompily arnd this informaton for
5 gvailabe ©n the www.gov.uk

ensyras it acis fairly and ina

The Grouo

transparant

&7
marner o al customers across all dwisons arnd
services, arnd actvely engages to resolve any dispuiles

r defaults. The Board ciosely rmonio
engages witn the ma

s custorner
metrcs and e nagement team o
usimess per-onmance coes

roT Meel CLSIOmars’ expectatons

TN~
g Octo

onus Investmerts Lmited

ansibility for tre provsion of Q;:E!ahonal

o]
respe
ver

secretanal senvices

signt, fnancat adrmimistration and company

Community and environment
T'he provision and operation of austainadle
infrastructare

sirateqic g

is at the cenire of the Group's
2als, Through 1s business actvities |
SIS the

Bltellle seeks to make a positive cortrioatic

cormrunity, environment ard eco h@rry Our
recewaile energy business is Felpirg the UK mest
its renewable energy targets, our privaie hc:spna:s
have supportea the NHS throughout tne Cowid-19
wregtment for non-Caovid-19

panderiic oy providing
NHS patierts that etherwise could not have been
carried cut, and cur fibre notwor< will give peope
in rural communities access 1 hign-seead

broadband

Business conduct

Az Dreciors our irie

Ton s o betave rescority,
ErsLnng MaEnagen ent coerae the buziness weih

rraqgaty and in actordance w i e bigh siaedards

of conauct and governance expactad of 2 business
sush as ours Sur inenton through our business

straiegy {outlned on pa
sectors and work with Gther Dusinesses that share

es 12t 1) is o operate .

ol values

Business ethics and governance
The Zcard iz rezponsible
actities of the Gro

for ensaring that the
businesses are
corductea n complance with tha law and

o and s varnous

applicabe goverrance and regulatery regimes, ard
in adnerence wth prevaling test pract.ce for the
relevant induastry, This includes reviewng nermat

controls, ensunng that there s an approoriate

balarce of ski's and expenance represe-tzd on the
Scatd, anc enduring trat the Frarcai siaterments
sirs of the

menc

give 3 frue and fair v.iew of the state of &5

Group. Furtrer detall ca- be found in th

of direciors rescorwg

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The 2card’s caicy on empioyes, hiuman r.ghts,

social and commurily 155ues, environmeant pc!:cy
and anti-corrushon and bribery matiers is giscussed
I the Directors Repori on page /9 The Board

actively promones a corporate culture that 1§ based

on eth cal values and benaviours,
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Group finance review

Boview of financial statemaeants

The purpose of tis report s 1o provide additioral I tne share price ara may nod reflect changes in the
explanatory information on the inarcial statemerts, 1 full marxet vawe of assets or husinesses owned by
in rmeasur ng our neformance, the financal ! othe Group
rneaswes that we use include those that have bean L ) o
A number of acquisitions were made durng the
derived from cur reported resulls in order o :
i Poyearn including mine operational rescrye nower sites,
elir-mate factors that distort year-on-year . . .
) _ ) ) N t oo waste o energy site under censtruction, a
comparisons These ara corsiderad non-GAAR : . ‘
i o Do constructian ready wind farrnin Australiz and
financia. measures. : )
i seventeen solar roofo sites under construction
A reconcriation of these to the finanaal resulis can P oShortly after the year end, in July 2022, we sold
be found i ~ote 28 of the rotes o the inancial I Darlington Point, & large so.ar site in Austrada.
statemenrts, : ‘ ‘
P To support conunded éxpansion, we rad oult
& [
The financ al statements sndw assets at cost, as such reserves at year end of E256rm which incluced
they ao net refect the future value tnat we expect o large cazn wilow of £57m from placing external
derwve from these Dus.nesses To that exient Porefinancing i Darlington Point pricr o sale.
accounting performarce may difer matenally from :
(restated} Movement
2022 2021
£'000 £°000 £ 000 %
Reven 711,830 425,302 2-J6,J18 a7%
EBITDA 194 916 104 036 90,880 87%
Profit {os3) before tax 47 604 (22 663) 70,267 310%
I Prdmc bO’DP inet *)f pr(wm ) 360 901 385 512 {24,611 (A%
Cash 256,415 172,478 83937 49%
Ne de 793,169 699,440 53723 13%
Net assets 2,219,448 1 887 842 331,607 18%

Financial performance

Qweral., tne Group has reporied a profit before tax of
£476m for the year ended 30 June 2022, which is a
£7G.Zmamiprovement on the prior year (2021

£22 7rmoss restated). Overall EBITDA ircreased by
87% to £135m (2021, £104m restated], which is
crimarily due to increased energy generation as well
as increased energy prices.

Reverue increased by £28/m to £712m (2021

“Carnings before inferest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

EA2Em) whecn
increase in revenue within ren
ed en

1 Was r@dfummanny drven by a 843
wergy diviston Thig
growtn is twa foid, ircreas ergy generation
from having owned/operated one of our bamass
and & large solar plantin
Adstralia reaching commissioning; and a sigrificant
INcrease N average energy prices aver the year due
to the mismatch between supply and dernand,
sngoing conflict in Ukraine.

pltanis for the full year a

exacerbated Ly the ©
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Group finance review

Revariue growltn was strongest in our energy
division but we also saw a rmarked irmprovernent in
revenue from aur retreert vilages This part ©
cur business Fas repounded we'l from the
lorkdowns requres by tre Covid-19 pendenic
response, seting 41 urits in the year (an ircrease of
52%) and a7 increas ng N revenus of £75m o

E204m 12021 E12. 7).

Revenue frorm our lending divsion saw a drop of
2%t £A2m 2021 EETmmY dus to a
Qan Dook over the year as cashi w

D grow other parts of the business

Owersting expenses for e year were i lre with

ey
rwen

our expectatons, with the rncrcase promanly

Dy NCreased operantng costs N our fibre Aivision as
it has expanded, Refinanang axtertal debt to
SECUre smMproved Tenms over the nast twao ymfv ha

sreosts ol £2 5'7*

contribiuted 1o a decrease i

to E23 Em (2021 E36 1my).

intere

Sf £28rm
recognised on ihe sale of two wird farms in F nlang

incluced in tre resuits this year s a profit C

ard A reatsancn of £1 8 of deferrea cons deratior

o

e SOlar sites <old N previous years

Financial position

Continued sharehclder nterest ard nvestmen: has
arow to L2,219m {2021 E1
restatec). In the year ended 30 Jure 2022, we

seen ret assets o 838m
issaed 120m shares (2021 l“ ’)m, fer g total

consiceration of £20 m2 Cf£2. 3 Ay Tre

2667 restated)
have ‘ncreased by 2145, reflecting the reguction in

external frarcing a

within the Sbre ar

5

o an increase e work n orogress
d house oulld. rg dwvisiors Gur car
DO N CIODENtY ienaing nas decreased by 6% 1o

Z36im 12021 £586m‘| and a1 30 Sune 2022

Gperaung actvives decreased to 142
£342m) wt uch has been ut lised along
lorig term Snaacing ang caotal raise
1Izsues to grow the bus ress We hay
supstant aty inte the fore broackar

witicrn wil reg

trie pact four years L

exgenditure over the
civers

rext 3-5 years
Ccalion across sectors

Of the cash hed at year end, £211m was held in
y. e bulding and Fore subsidiaries,

where there are a nomber of constructon ard

infractructare proects under way, regur ng cash to

or the acquisiion of some
2AAMGie

e 5 markat value

sINcsses, for

reaevwable eng &g, o’“cm T EV

im excess of fhe comoa r;‘s net assets, reflecing

treir resalbo future Inco
Convertion reaures th

narred on ihe oatarve
ca~ro: record the ¢

that s
& sddinona: vaiue in

va.uge wh Ch coripr ses the future prc;fﬂ"‘
are expectes o deiiver 7
excess of ;e valle of fixed assats thermselyes (such

as Ola” panels) s recognised as gooawil

Put simely, the market vaue of the energy

ereration bus resses (o indeed any CLeraiona:

stes; reflects the value of future expected

profits, notine cost of amply buy'ng tang ble azsets

g5 soar pares or wnd wirkres We nay

may

tuch as tne

=t vall.e for the stes we acaure, wh o

s, e
exneced
ogrised wll

o ife of tre
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Sector performance

Energy
Ag econom . sctivity and global demand increazed

(2021 £156m restated), parualy driven by increased
site costs whiere £120m was incurred at our
throuj“ouu tne year, 3o toc did wholesale energy biomass siaes and £93rm al our resarve power site
the prices for raw matenals Fave increazed, on
average, hy 6%3% dus to an increase in the supply
costs The combined cost of sales for the reserve

onces, driven by movernerts in comrroadity prices,
wmch resulted n te Gveralé ncregse In revenue
carned across our energy sites These market
factors have resulted ir an incCrease in revende of
84% to £5592m (2021 £

power and biomass sites increasad by £110m w
E£217m (2021 107} It should be noted that the
revenue generaed by the biomass and reserve

power sites increazed by £192m dunng the year to
F353m (2021 £1£1m).

Correspondingly, EBTDA atso ircreased by 112% ¢
266m {2021 [126m restated) reflecting the

significant irCrease in energy revenue, COveral tota, 3

operating costs increased by £130m to £327m :
FY2022 Fy2021 FY2022 FY2021
Production Production External External
{MWh) {MWh) Availability Availability
éﬂ.omjz) e s e r s+ v e 1,056,0;35;8555; e e
Lardhil Gas 240,226 256,526 97.9% 97 6%
Feserve Power 403,355 141,086 94.2% 92 0%
Sear 554,858 517112 972.7% 56 0%
WIng 851,214 881,241 90.5% 931%

Totai 3,099, 690 2 682 019




Group finance review

Healthcare
Healthcare operat.ors contnbuted £46m
(2021 £42m; wo Groun reveruas for the year

CI¥IS ON 350 InCLrSs large oserating expensas ag tha
DLIiresIes scale ber oparations and develoc
rracket presence. Overal: te dwision reported an

o

reflecting te mipact of increasec reverue in EITTA oss of £55 Arm (2021 £23 B loss,, which

Rargeord Lales ¢f apariments at the retirement
viilages have rebounded well from the loc<aowns

reguirec by tne Cowvid-19 panderic response, ‘
/ Pe F’, L As we bule these netwaorks out, the aszets will be
seting 41 units 0 tne year @nm increase of 52% rom ‘ .

L L recogrised on e balanceé shaet at cost which
2021) anc ncreasng revenue by £/2.6m to 2202

N ] canno incude future value which s expected o be
(2021 £12 7).

cererated s the assets nave haea™ inernally

L

Lending I genera‘ed. This s different 1o tne share grice whe
RFeven.ie from lending decreased by 214 1o £E42m 1 te future value expecied (o be generated from toe

s ncl.des

(2021 £57m) primmarily due 1o a smaller average

‘oan book for 2022, whicr re

cam for the yes

Home building

Elvia Homes was acquired n Mg

reduced b 6% 10 EZ51T al the yer : ‘

L~ P DY D 7 1 trerefore hsd amited imrpact ©

L3885y, This reducuor in the lgar . o ‘
i performance during ne year. Tre business s

cash o be avalab e for ooportunities across ather

. forecast to dalver £78m revanue ang £6.5m
sectors withr the Group neluging acguisiucrs and

) EET3A for the year ended 30 June 2023 Resais
consrucho. The mrake-un of the loan book nas

from the first quarter of 2023 indicaia the ous

shifted sligntly where we have 1ssuad a “ighor . .
s broadly corforring in ine witn expectatiors.
number cf smalter Inans w thin the residentia :

Funding and liquidity
Our stratagy is o secare long-term “nancing at

nore targer lears n the

cevelepmen: tecter ang tne commerc’a! secior

i conservative levels from mainstrear barks to

EBTOA for the tending d| sion decreased to 3 loss . ‘
C L8 T f t .y : enhance reilrms rom our rerewab.e energy
Of £E8 /i from a profit of nearly £E1m n the pror ) ;
<y R DLEIrEsses. ,L‘xt year end we nagd £1,044m ¢

year This moverment reflects a prov sion of £25m in :
Y ‘ external project firarncng with £441m of

the loan book aganst loans 1o reserve power sies
‘ ‘ ‘ . heagrecam avalac.e
and a provision against & healthcare log™ of £14m
In the year to June 2022, £29rm was prov ded i Tnis enactes us o acqure bus resses fratthe

aC
B03INTL 10a" s versus £22m in tre prior year, rarst considers to nave stable charactenstas such

as predictable cost base, revenue streams,
Pogovernment incentves or prove no

LCH have ower relurms th

%

ot
e insufhcien: for our sherelclders, W asc ahows us
flexils

Uocast flow We beleve that ‘aiu

sy on Frangeg our busnesses and manayng

vostratlegy woull rave a negatve i

retun and shasehclder value Cver

SErS &5 WE EXDETC filbre netwaorks,

Although cud.ng 2 5bfe network 1€ cacital inters ve ) e 2 . . ,
g g Aoproxiratey BO% of cur interest payasis is fixed
¥ gy

et on hatance sreet, the

o

ana leans to a prysical as .
and therefore we are not < gr Scanty expesed to
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Group finance review

the current interest rate volatlity, We conunually
review finaric.ng arrangerments 1o ensure that they
are compettive and aptirised for the needs of the
business To ensure casn Is maraged In an agile
nanrer, we maintain a fexioe fnance facity
which can be drawr down or repaid to meet

immredaie usiness needs.
Looking ahead

The Groun

the Covid-1% pandemic

well from the effects of
red has catperformed

a5 rebounced

expeciations. Wniist the current economic autloox
is ore of challerge and uncertainty, we anticinate
minimal Impact on our results gue to the
creqictat.e revenue strearms and cost base, ard
essential rature of our activites Coupwed with the
diversiication we have bulll up across the business,
we are positioned strongly for tnese turbuent
times angad

We continiue to pay particula' attention o the twn
sing ne rates and surgirg
inflaticn - bota in terms © flﬂmowg and pertfolo

rernds impact all areas of the

chailenges o°

managemani. Trese tr
Group's business and are Lkely to remain for the
foreseeabie future, so we remain gisciplined n our
investmert approach, continuing o mornitor the
situaticr carefuily and takirg a prudert appreach to
ary currert and emerging risks,

We gre positive asout the continued opgortunity
for growth and continrue to beleve that the

busines
futlre growth opportunities acress its

515 positioned well to take advantage of
core business
areas Energy, lending ard house bullaing

ablished n the marketl and
continue to make excelent proagress with rohust
performances in the new financial year. In e with

operatons are well est

cur planned strategy. since the year end we s0ild &
large solar farm in Australia for 2 small proft, with
proceeds beng redeployed into new opporiunties

Deployment into fibre cortinues o roll ocut in line

with expectat.ons a~d the Group has now passed

more than 150,000 homes by our fibre netwaorks
Sates actvity in our healthcare divisior remans
s sudget

strong, with nearly 40% o annual sa
cady completed or reserved across al sites as at

!
the end of Seperabe

Anrounced within the autumn statement as part of
the 20232 firance 8il, the UK Govermment wil
eract a 45% windfall levy {"Slectriciny Generato

Levy” or "EGL on wholesale energy market

revenues In excess of £75/MWh T%’ 55 exgected (o
acply to the Group frorm © lanuary 2 o 3.
March 2028 The exact {egislation will be prls ed
in mid-Cecemper 2022, but sased on the inftial
release an impact analys's has been performed

as at 30 Seotemper 2022 We esumate tne impact
to be a drog in valua

for tne wiwes affec

tior of apgroxrmately £45n
ed 10 2
are price to 177.0p 1N

ed, whah contr:but
Z2.0p decrease n the
December 2u22.

We expect to generate srang cperating returns

from our established divisions for the coming years,

N addition to the anticipated cutflows for our

corstruction phase assets The hezlircars and
fibre divisions are well into thar buid phase in line
with cur long-term strategy and we anticipate
strong returrs over tne next fve 1o seven years

uper maturity

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022

&
ih3n bas
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financiat
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,

-

or a surmmary of the Group's results, refer to the

Group finarce revicw o page 23

Tre directors have not recommended payment of

a dividend (2021 £N)

The directors of tne Company who were i= offi

auring the year ana up o the date of sigring the
financal staterents were

PS Latharn

RO Wiiley

PG Barlow

T Arthr lappointed 1 July 2522

s e

Refer to noe 23 10 tne Nows 1o 7¢ financ.al

P s
Satemenis

w R ot v

Refer 1o the Strategic Report on oage 8

s Nz s BRI

kefer tc the Strateqic Report on page 12

The Group's opjectves anc policies on finanaia: rsx

maragement imcluding nformation on the

expceure of the Group o credi risks,

and market risks are set out in note 23 1 the
friancia: staterments Tne Groun's principal rizks are
set out i the strafeqic report o page 16,

25 permitted by secnon 424c (11 of tre Companies
1o disclose

Act 2006, the drectors have elects:

dlobein e directors regort
by Schedule 7 of the 'Large ard Medium-sized
Companes and Gro pz A

rfOrManon redu

ccounts and Repor

Reqgulations 2 J& in the strateqic report

e LT L I

Tne Board recogn.ses that a corporate culiure
sed on sound ethical values ard

asset e Group endeavours

('J

i henaviours 15 an
corduct ity

blLs ness with ntegrity, 1 an ethical, professiona

and resocons be mancer, realing our employee
cLstomers, supplers ane parines with courtety
and rezpect

Applications for employment by disabled persors
189 Y

are arven full ard fa

consideratior *or ak

rd o tnelr partcu.ar aohlades
cn becorre disabied
E\oymer‘: every effortis

T ertpayment, Givirg

siternatve rareg as Tary
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

that our emoloyees wish 1o be

We fully realise in accordance with the recommerdatons of The UK
nformed and consulted on matters affecting their

work and to be irvalved in problem-soiving affectirg

Corporate Governance Code, the 3oard has

conzidered the arrangements 'n place G encourage
staff of e Group or manager of the Group to raise

the:r own areas of Interest and responsiiuty

. o . P ocorcerns, in confidence, with n ther grgarizaticon
The Grouo s firmily committed to a coucy of good . 1 7 ‘ o )
about possiole Irpropreties in matters of financial

communicator at all leve.s and we aim o establise _ . ]
reorling or other matters Itis satised that adeguaie

3 clirmate w! .U 1 congtantly encourages tre open
} . angements are in place 1o allow an independent
flow of \nforrration and 1deas. Prasently this

. . \ , nvesugaiion, ard follow-on achen where necessary,
ncludes monthly team briefngs at a local wevel and

T . . to tare place within the crganisation
the oudlication of morthiy key performance
naicators covermg outout, cperating costs ana e e

neath and safety. . _
We are committed 1o acung ethicaily anc with

ntegrity ' alo our business dealirgs and
ralghionsinips and to implermentirg and enforcing
effective systemns and controls to ensure modern

The Group has 1n place ar agreemrent with Octopus

Irvestrents Limited to provide services to the . ‘
slavery is not taking place anywnere I oUW
Group covenng operational oversignt

. pusiness or inany of our supply chams, consisient
adrministration, company secretar al and cormoany .
with our obuganons under the Modern Slavery Act
acLounung. e j ‘ )
I 2018, We expect the sarme high standards from all
.- v . : of our cortractors, suppliers and other cusiness

) ) Y partners. As part of our contracting processes, we
The Board aacptec a formal envircnmental, social ¢ -

xpect our suppiers o comoly weih the Modern

nd corporate governance ("e5G7) potey or :
Pe ) - alpetey o P Swavery Act 2015

30 Seprermnber 2020 The Group recognises the :

Lo

reed ¢ conduct its pusiness, ina manner that is
responsible to the ernvirormenti, wnarever possible.

The directors are resporsible for preparing the
rlia

As a low energy user, the Company has elected not Anrua. Resort and tne Arancial statements in
1o disclose data on its energy and carbon usage. ! accordance with applicable law and regulation.
fern Trackng Limited 15 the only Company in the P )

. - Compary law requires the directors 1o prepare
Group & ha t mests the reporting criteria and

financial statermants for each financial year Urder

therefore no information 1z providea for the Group ) B ‘ ‘
tmat .aw the directors wiave prepared the Group and

as a whowe

omrpany financial statements ' accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Azcounting
Fraciice [Urited Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprizing FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
ireland’, and apphcabie law]. Under company ‘aw
the drectors must not approve the financial
staternents urless they are satisfied that they give a

B A

The Group s has an Anv-Bribery Policy which
introduced robust procadures 1o ensure ful
compliance with the Bribery Act 2010 ana to ensure
that the highest starcards of professionat ethical

conduct are maintained.
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

true anc fair view of the state of affars of the Groue Tl Tt amo
ri to! woprofit o S 2 Group el

and Comoany and of the profit or logs of the Groun s permitied By the Articles of Assocation, the

= 1 [al=1atvs W YT~ Sy e

anc Comeany for that pericd. In prepar ng tne irectors have the benefit of an nder“mt/ WAGh s

ater ts, the cireciorns are régu red to: .
statemernits, the cireCiorns are reGu red to ying third-party Inaeminity provison as

definad by section 234 of the Companies Act 2005, :
The indemrity was i force throughout the ‘

L itaole accounting polic es and tmen app.y

, D oqnancial year ard s curerily in force 1
. cable United Kingaom : :
SIS, compnsim FRS 102 Fave i PR
iect o any matenal depariures | . }
Iin the case of each director 0 office at the date the '
ined in the francia :
t Directors’ Report s aporoves |
. Doe 5o faras the areliors aware, there 15 no relevart ;
) NG accounung astmaes that 8 ) § :
‘ : aut infermaton of wh ch the Group ana
~d prudent, and : . }
t o Corepary's auditors are unaware, and
« peepare the fing~ca : .
Poe they have taken ol the steps that they ought i
P o Pave taken as a drecior in order 10 make i
: !
: thernselves aware of any relevart aud™
conunue rbusines :
! nformation and to establis™ that the Group and |
a. opsiole for safequarding | Company's auanors are aware of that information.
the assets of the Sroup ana Comoary and rence : ‘ } ‘ :
) ) i Trus confirmat or g given and s-ould be intergretéa ;
for takirg reasonaole stess for the orevent on and : i :
R .. Ion accordance with the grawsiors of section 418 of ;
aetection of fraud and other irrecularities : ) :
1 the Comparies ACt 2006, :
Tre drectors are responsble for keeping adecuate 1 L R 1
, . ¢ Ernzt & Young (P having pee~ appomrted in 2022 :
acoourting records mat are sU © show and : ) ]
‘ U have indicated their wilingness 1 oe reappoinied ;
&% G ¢ Company's ransacions and ) . :
} } ) v for another terr ard wll be proposed for re- !
dsCCse Wil reasonabte accuracy ,ﬁ, amy e the : . !
. - Ioapooniment 1n accordarce wth secuon 485 oF the
nanc'al posinan of the Group a~d Company and :

e}
. . . Compames Aci 25086,
enabie them o ensure tat the financal statements

The Uirectors recort was aporovead by
Directors on 16 Decerrber 2027 ano 5 gned on ks

The drectors are responsibie for the ma nterance o .
canall by. ;

and inegrty cf the Compary's we

N the Unites Kipgdorm goverring t

and disseminator of Francia: sale

fromy | [[3al :
! PS Latham !
zarsctor ;
: .

1 IE Decermmner 2022 !




dited the financ.al stazements of Fern
('the Farent Comoeany’) and 115
or the year ended 30

the Group Stateme

We nave aug
Trading L
subsid

Jume

miten
iaries ithe Group’) |
2027 which comprise : nt of
Comprehenzive Income, the Grodp a ‘d Parenl
Compary 3alance Sheet, the Group St
Casn Flows, the Group ana Gk

Cnarnges in equity and the related nowes

Farent 3

mcluding @ surnmary ©F sign ficant ac mmg
policies:
been appued in thelr sreparation is appicanie law
and Urired Kingdom Accounting Standards
inciuding FRS 102 "re Financial Resortirg
Starndard anpl'cabie n the UK and Sepublic of
Ireland” (Lnited Kingdorm Generally Accepted

O
The dnancal reporting framework 1zt nas

be F
ctce)

Accounting Pra

In our opricn, the firangal staterment

U

» give arug and far view of the Group's and of the
Farent Company's affairs az at 30 Sune 2022 ana

of the Group's proft for the year the~ ended,

« nave been properly precared i1 accorgance with
United Kingeom Gereraly Accepted Aczounting
Pracuce and

« nave been pregared in accordance with the
reguirements of the Companies Act 2006

Haszis for opinion

oLraudit In accordance with

internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK})

and applicabie law Our respons:biliies urder those

standards are further descrbed in the Auditor's

the audit of the financiat

rt We are

nce pﬂrdﬂmr of the Group ir accordance with the
Fical requirements tha

We conducted

rasponsibilies for
statements secton of our repo

1 are relevant 1o our audit of
tl’ finarcial statements in the UK, ncluding the
FRC's Ethucat Standard, and we have fulfilled our
ofher ethicat rdance with

these requireents.

SDOHCM\ ities nacco

We believe that the audit eviderce we have
obtained is
bhasis

sufacient ard appropraie to provde &
{or our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
Ir auditing the Ainancial staternents, we have
concluded that the directors use of the going
concerr basis of accountng in the preparation of
appropriate.

e inancia: statements 1s

Based on the work we riave perforrﬂes, we have
5 relating to
individually or cotlecuvely,

not identfed any rmatenal Lneertamn
events or conditions that,
may cast wgnifcant doust on the Group and Farent
Company's acilty 1o continue
for a perind of twewve reonths from when the
financ! rised for issue.

as a going concern

ar staternents are autho

rresponsibiites ard the responsb ites of
spect o going concern

ant sectons of this

the drectors with re
are descriped in tnhe rewey

renost. However, because rot all future events or

ond uons can be predicted, this statement s nota
guarantee as o the Group’s abi. ty W& conunue as a

goiNg concern,

Other information
The other information comprises tne information
included in the arnual report, other than the
hnancial staternents and our auditor's regort
thercon, The directors are resporsiole for the other
nforrnation contained witnin the annual "eport

the financial statements does
on and, except 1o the

Cur opinion on not
cover the other informat
extent otherwise explicitiv stated in thiz report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclasion

therecn,

Our responsibility 15 10 read the other nformation
and. i doing so, consider whether the cther
nconssstent with the
a.nad in

inforrnation is materiath
financial statements or our knowledge oo

A ’T< e




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of the audr or ctherwise appears 0 e
such maters
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements

raterally rmisstated. If we ideniify

we are required to determine whether this gives nze

t0 a maenal rrzisstatefbent n the financial
siaternents ther ves, if, based on the work we
Fave perforrred, we corclude that there (s 2
raternal misstatement of the other information, we

ara required to rapart that fact

We have notning o repart in this regarg

Crpinions on other matters praseribad
&}}f g Lompanies Act 2008

v cur opirion, based on the waork undoria<en 10

e courze of the audit

o the nformation give~ in the Strategic repo { and
the Dnrectors’ report for the fnandias year for
which the fina-cial staternents are prepares is

cons slent with the financ al staterrents, and

- tne Strareqic reccrt anc Jireciors’ repori nave
bacr prepared I accordance with applicasle

legal requiremenis.

Matters on which we are reguived o

report by exception
in the hght of the knowledgs and uncerstarding of
tre Group and the Parent Company and its
ervironment obiaired 1+ the ¢

we have not idertified ran

the Strategic re

We have nothing to reoo t in resgect of the
following matters in reigion 1o which e

lala)

Corroanes Act 2006 reguires us © report o you f,

I QU ooiTion

sures of Direcrers remuneration

e ceran gisclos

pecified oy law are not made,; o

vy

« we have hot recevec sil the \nformanon and

exp.arat:ons we require o7 our audit

Hesponsibitities of divectoes

As expiained more fu:ty n the Cirectors
esponsibiities statermen

q the ODrectors are

N

f the financial siatements and ‘or beng satsfied
trat they g ve
irternal o omrot

Ir preparnng the fnancal st

=

are responsmle for ans
Urae as a gong
comcern, d‘sc‘.o\:'"g, ag apnlcadle, matters related

to gc,-'rag concern and yzing the gomg concern

unung unless the Directors aither

Irtend to b qmox’) the Grouyp or the Paren:
o Company o 10 £8ase OpErancns, or have no

rezliztc alierratve out 1o 4o so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

Orur obgectives are 1o oblar reasonable assurance

about whether tha AClal statements 2t a whole

1 oare free from maternal misstatement, whetner due
! to frauc o error and to ssue an audior's repo
¢ trat nciudes our opn on. Rezsonakle azsurarce is

3t g guarariee that
srdance with 1SAS |

HERTI “\PJ:)/C detect g material misitatemenrt wnen .o
exsts Misztaternents car anse from fraud or error
ard are corcicderen matera, i indi

aggregate. they coulo reasonadly

F
Loinfluence the ecoromic seqisions: of users tazen on
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independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

« obtaning ar Lndarstandirg of policies and
procedures ir piace regarding complance

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considered capable of
detecting rregelarvities, including with iaws and regulations, including how
fraud : complance with such paolicies s mornitcred

and enforcec; cbtairing an understanding of
management’s procass for dentifying ana
responding to fraud risks, including grograms

Irreguarines, including fraud, are nztances of non-

compliance witn laws and regulations. We des.gn
procedures in line with our responsitiiias, outlireg
including fraud. The
risk of not detectng a material msstatemant due 1o

and controls establisned to adoress nsks
idenzified, or otnerwise prevent, deter and

oove, to detedr rragiilarities

o

detect fraud, and how senor managerent

frauc 1z tugher than the risk of not detecting one )
monitors those prograrns and conirals;

resulting frorn error, as frand may nvolve deliberate

coriceamment by, for example, forgery or intentionat
rusrepresertations, or througk coldusor The

o review of goard meeting minutes in the ceriod

and up (o date of igng.
extent to which oLr procedures are capable of

‘ ‘ ‘ N + We assessed the susceotibility of the
detecting irequianties, including fraud s detailec

finarcial statements to materia. miss

celow. HEowever, the primary responsioilty for the
grevention and detection of fraud rests with botn

thosa charged with governance of the entity a~d

ricluding now fraud might ocour by hc!dmg
discussion within the audit tearm which included

Tanagemert. « wentification of related parties,

Our zpproach was as foliows « understanding the Group's busingss, the
control ervircnment and assessing the inherent

= We obtained an understanding of the legal anc ] , . .
risk for relevant assertions at the sigrnnicant

regulatory frameworks that are applic b e o the
Group and determimed that the most sigrificant

are those that relate to reo rng framework (FRS
102 and tre Comganies Act 20063

account level including discussions wath
managernent 1o gain an undersianding of

those areas of the financial statements which

were susceptble to fraud, as igentifhed by

« We underztood now Fern Traging Limited i
compiying with those frameworks by making
enguiries of managerment, those charged with
governance and those responsib.e for legat
ard complance procedures as 1o any fraud risk :

management, and

o consicerea the controls that the Group has
estabilshen 1© address risks wenuhed by
the entity or that otnerwise seek to préavent,
deter or detect frawd including gaining an
urderstanding of the entity leve, cortrols and

framework within the enuty, .ncludirg whether
a formatl fraud risk assessrment s comoleted. We
corroncrated our enguines through review of the

poiicies that the Group applies,

« Based on this unaerstanding we des gned our
alLdi procedures to identify non-compaance

followirg documentat' an or performarce of the
following procedures:
with such laws a~d reguiations. Our procedures

« obtzning an understanding of entity -tevel ‘ i ‘
involved test'ng of journal entries through

contro.s and considering the infiugnce of the

) ‘ journa. analytics tools, with focus 01 manual
ortrol environment;
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Iindependent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journats, large or unusua! transactions, or journals

rmeeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the busineass; tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senier management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any nan-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financiai
statements: and inspecting correspondence,
if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilites for the
audit of the financial statemerds is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

LR S T ERE AT VR ]

This report is made solely to the Company’s
rmembers, as a body, tn accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companics Act 2006. Cur audw
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s membaers those matiers we are
required to state o them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law. we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁ‘/m@:&% /\L—L-p

Michael Kidd {Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLE Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the year endead 30 June 2022

B L L PUNP PSS EF PR

Turnover

< [; T Qw \d 5

Grossproﬁt o
Adm riist ‘tive EXEN5ES

Operatmg prohtl(loss)
Otrerircome

neome from other fixed asset ryestmsnis

Share of cperating profit i 10Nt verture

Freft on dispasal of subsidiares and joint venture

Citner .merost cecevasie and smilat ncome

rutrrr & payauw ar wd 50 :haf""—‘a
Proﬁtl(loss) before taxatlon

Tax on proft/liloss

PI‘Of“I“OSS)VfOI’thE fll'lanClal year S

Attributable to Fern
Minority interest

F L R P R R R S o SR 2 A R w4 s i balme s ST L

2022
Note E‘OOO

1 711 830

5,249
& 29,533
g 130

6o eEEsae

47,604
7 (16, 294}

37,932

{410,883) .
300,947

6622

31,310

(restatad)
2021

£ OC'O

ol SR YO R O HIREE S bt 0 i, 2 o

425307

(221,277}

204,025

(231,844}

5454
445
1755

28,568
957
(36,067}

[22,663)
(@, 349/

(31.01&)

(27.005)

©4.007)
{31.012)

All resuits relzte 1o continding achivities. Note 26 detals the prior pericd aciustments

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

{restated)
2021

£000

brofitioss for the financintyenr o sisio T R
Other comprehensive income S S S
Mowvernents in casn ftow nedges 77,985 44983
Foresgn exchiarge §: n’(mss, an retranslation of subwuza 131561 (373J
Other comprehens:ve mcome for the year 9m6,51{6m ) MM44 450 V

Attributable to
« Owners of the parent

s Non-controlling interests

134,478

127,856

6622y

17645

13638

(4 007]
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4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Group balance shest 23 3t 34 June 2022

lrestated) i
2022 2021

’ Nete £006 £000
F;xedi;\srs;ts < raeaore . e s e e e g e S g et 1 o T S
Irtangible assets 3 557,708 576,739 i
Tangize az el 1,893,430 1.581.682
Irvestments 10 35,452 11,000 i
Curventassets I
Stocks 12 184,479 94,711 |
Debtors imciuding E138m 12027 €18 Lm) 13 623,161 598,002
due after more GNE year) '
Cacty at pank ard in ke il 256,415 172,478 '
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year C 1 (2s6352)  (02059)

Total assets less current liabilities
Credi

“;?,832,55‘3- )
(©603,739) %

rs: amounts falling due after more than one year 15

Provisions for liabilities o Y A (;32,620) a7
Net assets 2,219,448 1.887.842 E
Capital and reserves 3

Callea uo shara capits.

Ee
[e3]

161,662 149,676
Share preraurm actount 364,882 173118
MeErger rasery 1,635,569 1440257
63,006 (14.5979) ;
(2,770) 136.043
Tbtélsharehotders’ funds oo 27,2“52,3:-49 ‘-1,88-4,1;21
: g nterests ) {2,901) ) 3721 .
Caputalemployed o e n 2,219,448 1,887;842 ,

Cavh Acw her

FProfis and loss accoun:

Norn-zontrol

Note 26 details the pnior penad adjusimenrts. :
H

Tresa consolgated Frenoa. siatements or pagas 35 10 92 were agp oves by tne Boare of dreciors or

= M} 2

5 Decerrber 2022 ard are signed on thar pekal by 3
\
;

PS Latham

Drirector :

Registered rumcer LZECIEZE
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Company balance sheet as 2t 30 June 2022

2022 2021

R ot €000 £900

10 2, 539 978 2,116,366
2539978 216366

3 39,888 50,383

11 6,422 1 553

""" 7 48310 51906
Cféditors amounts fallmg due wnhm one year I 14 (449) (22, 9/4)" -
Net current assets e 45,8g1wm289P2
Tor;arlia;swsets less::uukr;en_;i;ablllt:es o 2,585,839 2 145 348
Netassets 7 2585839 2145348

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 17 161,662 149676

Share prernisn account 364,882 173,118

Merger reserye 1,986,457 1,791,145

Frofit and loss accournt 72,838 31 409
Total shareholders' funds S 2585839 2145348

The Company has elacted (o take tre exemption under sectron 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 not to
present tne Company proht and loss accourt. Tne profit for the financisl penod deal with ir e financizl
statements of the Company was £236.742 000 {2021 loss of £157,504,000;

These financial staternenits on pages 35 1o 92 were aporoved by the Board of direciors on 16 December 2022
and are sigred on ther tehslf by

PS Latham
Director
Registered number 12601636
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Group statement of changes in eguity for the yesr ended 30 June 2022

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss sharer controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders” interest (restated)
{restated)  {restated) funds
{restated)
E'0DO E'000 E'000 E'0%0 E'DOD £'000 E'DOD E'DD0
138,435 - 1635569 63,837 (41,185) 1068982 G570 1578,552
Pr.ar perncd _ am f— B .
Aty sstrens o 26] - - 3,875 13928 17702 17703
138425 - 1625565 59,962) 127.356) 1686685 9570 1696255
- - - - 27,005} (27005} (4,007} {31,012
- - - 44,983 - 44,983 - 44983
- - - (33% (323 - {333)
- - - 44,585 1523 44,650 - 44,850
ek
for - - - 44,982 (27338 17645 (4,007 15638
- - - - 1.8%1 1831 11,842} [688]
- - 193,312 - 195317 - - -
11,685 173,118 - - - 184,802 - 154,803
(444} - - - (5,299 16,843} - 6,843}
143,676 173,118 1440257 {14,979 126,049 1884121 3721 1.887.842
Balance as at
1 3uly 2021 (restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 {14,979) 136,049 1884121 3,721 1,887842
Profit for the
financial yest - - - - 37.932 37,932 {6,622} 31,310
Changes i market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985

hedges

Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation — - - - 18,5561 18,561 - 18,561
of subsidiaries
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4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022
Called up Share Merger  Cash fiow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds

£'000 E'000 E'000 E'000 £'000 £°000 £000 £000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/(expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ _ 195,312 _ {185,312) _ - _
resarve
Shares issued during 11986 191764 - - - 203750 - 203750
the year
Balance as at
20 June 2022 €1,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 {2,770) 2,222,349 {2,901} 2,21%9.448

- Note 26 details the prior pericd adiustrments

Company statemeant of changes in eguity for the year ended 30 June 2022

Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
o £7009" o £'000 E'000 E'000 £'00q
Balance atincorporation o o :wmdgha . . - %: B
Loss for the financial year I - - asTsna (57504)
Utlisation of merger reserve - 1195,312) 195312 -
Total comprehensive income - o - (195312 37838n B MMY"S?%:B&;
Shares issued dunng the year 150,120 173118 1986457 - 2,309,695
Shares cancelled during the year (444} - - 17, 399) 16.843)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173118 1794145 31,409  2,145348
Profit for the financial year - - = 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312) -
Total comprehensive income oo - 195,31;“““ 41,42;7 7 V236741:A
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 " 1e1662 364882 1,986,457 72838  2,585839
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Group statement of cash flows for the yesy ended 30 June 2022

Mote

SRORR B 3R R b R TG & B IR T AR

Cash I‘lows from operatlng activities

Profviloss! for the financial year attibutable to the cwniers of the parant
Adjustments for:

[ax on profitiioss) 7
interast recevable and sirriar mcome 6
Irierest payat e and other sonilar <harges 6
Profit or disnosal of subsidanes and oin versiure &
Incorne frore omt venire

Imcorre frorm fixed asset iInvestrrants

AMSrisation ang impsnment ol intEngibe xed asssts 2

Lopreciation f tang
dore-cash salt costs

Moverments on cenvatives and foreign exchango
Ircresse . Stock

ncreasel/decrease in debrars

Ircreasefddecreasa] in ared'lors

Non controlling inferen:s 1%

- ,’;'\

Tr;y rer 2V

Net cash generated from operatlng actlvmes

Cash flows from mvestmg act:vltles

Purcnase of subsidiaey undertakngs (et F 2azh acaared

Sale of subsidiary undertaxki~gs and jont ventara

Furcnase of targible assets

Purchases of mtanqgible assets

Furorase of urstad irvestrnents

Sale of urusted mvesiments 15
Irterest recevad &
\r rame r/Jrﬁ jon: w ntwe

Net cash used in |nvest|ng actl\ntles

Cash ftows from financing activities

Procecds from franaing

irtarcsr paid

Zepaymerts of finarang

Procaeds trom share 155.e &

Can \,e(orur Of:’\Sft\ R

Net (decrease)/mcrease incash and cash equwa!ents

Cash and cash eguvaents ai re beginnmrg of the year 1t

Cash and v.:.ash equwalents at the end of the year 1

256,415

2022
£'000

I T ST Ly

37,932

16,294
(130)
33,554
(29,532)
(5,249)
45,762
101,802
3,040
{18,044)
(19,829)
31,022
(173,956)
(6.622)
25,853
ars97

{52,377)
101,778
(322,446)

(7,222)
(124,203)
105,000

130

_@eazam)

201,719
(32,319)
(32,013}

203,750
341.137
83 694

172,478

(restated)
2021
E‘OOQ‘

(27.005)

8,349
(997
36,068
(28.,568;
{1,755}
(449
37,704
84,657
8875
{19.788)
(5,701
249,374
6871
(4.007)
1 7C1)

?41 917

(221,987)
34,503
(110.457)
{875}
(29,617
20133
S97
1,077

135,552
(212,676}
184,359

(6,399}
(70,262)
(34577

206,688

367

e

Goszze)

172478
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Tracing Limited (the Company’) 1s a private company Hrnted by shares and incorporaed on 14 May
2020, The comgany is corriciled in England, the Uryted Kingdom and registered under conmpany nurmber
12601636 The address of the registered offce i at 6th Floor, 33 Howorn, Lordon, Englana, ECIN 20T

Siatement of compliance

The Group ana incividual firancial statements of Fern Trading Limited nave been prepared in comp.ance
witn United Kingdor Accounting Standards, including Financ.al Reporting Standara 102, "ihe Financal
Reporing Stendard appicabie in the United Kingdorn and the Republic of Ireland (FRS 1027 and the
Companies Act 2006,

Basis of preparetion of Hnancial statements

srical cost convention,

The financ al staterments Fave been prepared on a going concern basis, under the hiss
as maodified oy the recogmt;cm of certain finarcial essets and [dabilities rneasurad at far value, a~din
accordance with t-e Coempan es Act 2006 ard asp.rab\P accourtng siandards in the United Kngdom The

principal account ng ool ces, which nave been apgl nsistenty throughodt the year, are set out bewow.

The consclidared finarcial staternents include thie results of ait subsidiares owned by rem Trading Limitga
as listed in note 29 of the annual financas statements,. Certain companies o these subsidiaries, which are
listed i note 29 have tgken tne exemption from ar audit for the year arided 20 June 2022 permitted by
section 4794 of Comparies Act 2006 In crder to allow these supsidiaries o take the audit exarrptior, the
parent company has given a stailiory guarantee, n L re with section 47%C of Companies Act 2006, of all
the outstanding net liahilities as at 30 June 2022

Gaoing conoern
The Groug's ang the Clompany's busness activ.tes, tegetr-er with the factors lketly to affect s “uture
Gevetopmﬂ’?* perfcrmance and position are set out tne Siraiegic Report or pages 4 1o 14 The financial

nositicr of the Gre
revievy on pages 23 to 27 The principal rsks of the Group are set cut on pages 16 1o 19

up, its cash flows, Lguidity positon and horrowing facilties are described ir the financial

The Directors perform an annual going concern review that considers the Grouo's ability to meet its
finarca: omigations as they fall due, for & penod of at (gast twelve monins afrer the date that the financial
stalements have been agnead.

Due to the challenging market conditions maragerment have performed a1 assessment to deermineg
wriether there are any material uncertaintes ansing that could cast significant doubt on the atinty of the

N

Croup o continue a3 3 gong concarn. Mo significant 1ssues have been noted and as 8 conseguence, tne

directors betieve thaf the Group is well pL' ad tc manage its busiress risks successfully despite the current

uncertain economic outicok
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in reachng this conclus'on “he Directors nave reviewed tne fnancial impact of the uncertanty or the
[

Groun's taance sneet, profit and oss and cask flows with specific consideration given © the ‘cliowing.

A revarse sres

:twas performed on the base case

mwhiat scenanos would result in
risks ror the Groups hauidity sosticon The test showad even scenario of a ugrifcart reduction
of revernue of 4€2%, tre Group < abie to sustam its current oper s and meet al wabrlifies as they fall
cue for at least a year from the gate of signng thece Frarciai statements ,fh 1 uthising the ava'lable
faziities wiirin the Group

Tre Group nas a number of inaraing fachues that cortain covenants recur.ng the Growp w0 mrainiain

specifed Snandcia:

ratics ang comply with certair obt-er financ-ai covenants, These firancial covenarnts

testad at least guarterly, and, at the date of this renort, the ”“'ouo iz 17 comgharce wth allits financial

covaenarts Siress tests an reasorably plausible scenanos such as a s.gniicant reauction in ER' TOA of 84%
over Ume have Deen usad ko gzsess treé covenant requiremens for the at least the nex: twelve months ard

all covenarts have been fcrecast to De met even under the stress 1S sCerarno, in e Qoing concern perod

AL 30 June 2027 the Group had avalable cash of £256m and headroom avalabie of 44l inciuding a
revolying crest ‘aq ity of E210rm Debt of 2288m is dus to mawre 1N &g noone year, with the rerrainder

m
of EG56m payable in rore than one yoar. The Groups fac it es, repayment dates ard urdrawn amounts are
sel outin Nete 16 Loans and Bornowirgs
Key acco uf‘U”g Jjudgemert arnd estmates have been made w i considerat on given 1o the curran:
economic outock Key esumates irclude loan recoverati. ty, valushion of work e progress
decommissioning provisans, imaairmert of gosdwill and imvestrrents, Lusimess comoinat ons ard nedge
accounting. Details are set out on cages 50 t¢ 5

Jased on the above assessment of current ecoromic condtions ard tre mouact or e Groug's Gnanaial

=

poston. aquigity ard financial covenarts, the direciors nave conc uded that the Groue ard Company has
adequate resources 1C cortnueg In coerational exsrence for the next 12 nerths, Thus, they contnue o

zdon the gomg concern basis of accounling in prepar ~g the annaal inanc.al sratemeants

Bue ’&g}i: ons for gualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 allows a gualifying ennty certan disciosure examplio ns, suect to certam cooditions, which have

g ¥INY ¥ f )
begr compaed wih, 'ncludirg notficatior of and no coection o, the use of exemphions oy the Company's
sharehoicers

Tre Compary has taken acvantage of the llowing exeriotions

sUfng ert y;’”’i the conzoid:

ar’-cluoen 11 those f. jals at starerrents, imcuded (e Comice

1 from thie 9oa-cal instrur et discaosures, mequited dnaer FRS 102 paragraphs 12 2% o 11484 ang

paragranrs 12_ 280 12,29 3% the nforrat on s provided 1 the corsolaaten Rranca stammert

IorTel Corr persanon, a3 requred oy FRES 102

s from disciosrg tne Cormpany key managarnent 08
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Baziz of consolidation

The consclidated finarcial statements include the results of Fern Trading Limsted and all 43 subsidiary
undertaxings made up to the same accounting date Allintra-group oaances, trarsachons, income and
expenses are eliminated ir full o~ corscldation. Yne resuits of subschary undertakrgs acgaired or disnosed
of dunng tne per od are included or excluded forn the ncome staterrent from the effectve date of

acquisiior or disposal,

All urdertak ngs over which the Group exercises control, bemg the oower to govern the firancia, and
cperaing policies 50 as to obtain penefits from therr activites, are cones! dated as sube diary undertakings
Where a subs&iary nas different accounting polcies o the Group, adjustments are made t© those
subsidiary iinancial staternents 1o apply tre Group's accourtng oolicies when preparing the conscldated
firancial statements,

Ary sabsidiary uncertakings or asserates sold or accuired dunng the year are ncluded up . or from, the
dates of change of control or change of significant imflucnce respecuvely

Where te Group has wnitten a put opton cver shares held by a nor-corirz’ling interest, the Group
dereceorises the non-contrellng mierest and irstead recogrised contingent deferred consideraticn habiliy
woirir other payables for tne estimated amount ke 10 be pald (o the non-controding interest on exerc.se
of these options. Trie residual amount, representing the difference between any consideration paid/cayab e
and the non- controling interest’s snare of net awsets, is recognised as goodwill. Movements in the
estmated habiuty after initial recogninen are recogrisad at goodwili

Forelun currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group financial staternents are presented in pound stering ana rounded o thousands

The Company's functhonat and presentation currency Is pound swrhng and rounded to thousands.

it. Transactions and balances

Foreign currercy transactions are ranslated inio the functionat currency Lsing the spot exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Al each pericd end fOI’EIgﬁ currency monatary iterms gre ranslaied using the
closing rate. Ner-rroretary iterrs measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction and non-rronatary items meazdred at far value are measured using the excharge
rate when fair value was determined. Foreign excnange gains and losses resulting from the settement of
transactions and fro the translation at pericd-end exchange rates of monetary assets and Fapilibies
denominated in forsign currencies are recognised in e proht and loss account,

Al foreign exchange gairs and iosses ara presented in the proat and loss sccount within ‘admiristrative
expenses’

iti. Translation

The tradirg results of Group undertakings are translated into pounas sterling at the avarage exchange rates
for the year The assets and hapilties of overseas undertakirgs, including goodwil and fair value adjusimeants
ar sing or acquisition, are transiated at the excnange rates ruling at the year-end. Exchange adjustrnents

ar $mg fro the retrensiation of openng nel investments and from the translatior of the profits or losses
average ratas are recognised 'n ‘Other comprahensive income’ and allocated o ron-contreling interest

Q)

[\]

s agoropriate.
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Tarnover

The Greup operates e nurnber of class

f buziness, Reverue is gorived by the following
¢ Energy

Turmowver from the
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of electncity generated by solar farms, wird generating assers, reserve power

plants and oiom

and landfll stes is recoarized on an accruadls basisin the per oo 1M which it is

gererated. Reverue from iong-term government backed offtake agreements such as tne Rerewabie
or

Cibugat o Cerdficaton (ROCT) scheme are accrued in the penod nowhich it relates o, Turnoves from the
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passad to the buyer (o iega. compleiion), the arncun: of reverue can be racognised rebaoly, anad itis

Turneye:

o Lendimg

Turtover represenis arramgenrent fees and nierest on loans provided to customers, net of any valus
added wax Loan imer2t s recagn sed O an accrual Basis nine wih contracia terrms of the loan

agreement Arrargermrent fees are suread over the i of the lcan to which they re

« ribre
Turnover s recogrisad at the failr value of e conaderation recaves for ntermet connectvly arg rélated
IT services proviced 'n the normal course of buzmess, and s shown ret of VAT, Turmove is recogrised

based on the aate the senvice

5 Drowi

« House bulding

Turnover 15 reccgrised on legal coroisucn of )

from Nousing assocation contracts is reccgniced by reference w tre vaius of work comipleted as a
= s El

proporton of the tota contract value
Employee benefits

Tne Group orovides 3 range of herefis 1o empicyecs, :rClUCiNg arnua. bonus arrargemeants, pad houday

arrangemcnts and defined conmnoutor persion plans

i. Short-term benefits

hart- e berefits nci
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expenie n tne penod nowh o the service s recevea
ii. Defined contribution pension pian

I
)

iefired contrbut o plan s a pencior plar Lrdar whah the Groug pays Txed conngutors e 2

eparate ertity, Orce the Contr £t ons rave heen paia ihe Groug has no further payment oblizat

s

—

. P .
re CONUIDuIDnS are o

ecogrice

se when thaey a7¢ gds Arcunts not pa.d are showr in
n

accruals v the palance sheet The t5 ofthe par are meld zeparatey o™ the Croup snomcependertly
admimisterad furds

S Turncver
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iii. Share-based payments
ied chare-based payrents are measured at fair value at the talance sheet date. The Group

labiiity a7 the talance sheet gate hased an these fair values, taking intc accoun: the estimated

a
nummber of Jruis that will actuady vest and the current pronortion of the vesting perncad
Changes ntne value of this lagility are recogrisea in the incorne statement

The Grouo has no equity-setiled arrangements

Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to tne proft and loss account over tne term of the debt using the effective

nterest mettod 50 that the amcunt charged s at a consiant rate on the carrying amount Isile costs are
nitally recogrised as a reduction in the proceeds of the aszociates capral instrument and released to the

profit and loss accodrt over the tarr of the oebt

Current and deferved fax

Tax 15 recognisad in the staterment of ncome and reta'ned ezrmings, except that a change attnb.utabie © an
item of incorre and expense recegrised as other comprehernsive income or (o an (em recognisad directly
In equty 15 also recognised in cther comprehensive incorme or directly in eau ty respectvely

The currert income tax charge 1S caiculated on the basiz of tax rates ard laws that have Deen enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet cate in the countres wigre tae Company oparates and
generates -ncome.

De‘erred balances are recognised in respect of &' tirming differaences that nave ongirated but not reversed
oy the Balance shest date, except that!

« The rec ogmﬂon of deferred tax assets is lirmted o the extent that it s probanle that they wil be recovered
against ihe reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits, and

s Any deferren tax balances are reverseg if ana when all conditions for retaining asscciated tax allowances
nave been met

Ceferred tax balances are not recogrised i respect of perrnanent differences except in respect of business
cornbinations, when deferred tax is recognised or the differences between the fair values of assets acquired
and tre future tax deductons available far therm and tne differences petween the fair values of liapilities
accuired and the armourt that will be assessed for tax. Defarred tax s determined usirg tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substartively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Business combinations and goodwill
Buzimess combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.
The cost of a business compination s the fair value of the consideration given, liapiites iIncurred or

assurred and the equity instruments issued plus the costs directly attributable to the business combination,
Where control 1s achieved in stages the cost is the consideration at the date of each transact.on

On acauisiuon of a business, fair values are attributed to the wdentifiable assets, liabilites and contingent
liabilities unless the fair vatue cannet e measurad reliably, in whizh case the value is incorporated as
goodwil. Where the fair value of contingent Labilites cannot be reliaoly rmeasured they are disclosed

on the came basis as other contingent kabrithies

-
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adwill recognized represents thie excess of the fair vawe and ciwect,iy atiributabte costs of the purchase
cohsideratrcr‘v aver the fair values 1o zh@ Croun's wnterest in tne entiiable net assets, iabilives ana
35 acguired

contingent liahilitie
On acquistion, goodwill s adocated to cashi-genarat
tne comb ration

expected W6 benefit from

Goodwill is armortised over its expected useful ufe which is deterrminec basad on the esurnated Ufespan of
the assats acruired, Whiere the Group is unanle 1o rmake a retigh.c estimate of useful ife, goodwil is
amortised over a period not exceeding ten vears. Goodwil 1s rev.eweao and assessed for imparrment
indicators or an annual basis and any imparrment is crarged to the proft and loss

Tangible fAved azsels

Targible fxad assets are ecatan, Denreciation s provided at rates calcuiated o write

off the cost of fixed azsets, less tr tirmate safual value, over therr ﬂxpr—’rmd usef Ll lives, Deprecalon
commences from the o >f

o seryice Land ang aisats n the course of constucton
[=4

are not depreciated. T

> as follows:

EY/ A (sle

A% to 6% straicht ine

These assets are not depreciated until they are

varce Tent or cranges N mar<et oroe, Indicate that resicual value
or useful life have changed, tre resigua: value, useful life or deoreciation rate are amended prosoechively 1o

eflect the new Crcumatances, The assers are reviewed for impa rmentif the above faciors rdicate that the

carryng smount may be impared

Cans and losses on disposals are determined by conrpanng the proceeds with e Carying amaount ana ars
recogmsed withir profit or 128s

intangible assels

asccumolated amaortizabion and accumulated imoairment (0s5es

Cto allocate the depreciable amount of the assets

Arnortisaticn expenses are in

Developraent r ghis relate 1o
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Where ‘actors, such as charges in market price, indicate that residual vaile or useful bfe nave changed, the
residua. value, useful “fe or arnortisation rate are amended prospectively to reflect tne naw circurnstances,

The assets are reviewed for impalrment f the above factors indicate that the carryng amount rmay

Lenses

AT incephion the Group assesses agreerments that wransfer tne nigat 1o use astets Tre assessment considers
weetngr the arrangerent is, or cortams, a ease based on the substance of tne arrangement and whather
the leaze should be cassified as either a finance lease or an operating lease.

Leases of assets tnat ransfer sutstantially all tre rsks and rewaras incidental to ownership are classified as

finarce leases. Finance leases are capitaused at the commencement of tne lease at the farr value of tre
leased assel and depreciated aver the shorter of the iease term and the estmated useful He of the asset
Assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting dawe

Leases that do not tranzfer all the risks ana rewarss of awnersnip are Casziied as oparaing «£ases.

Payrrents under cperat rg legsas are crarged to the proft and 'ess account on a straight-ine tasis over the
perncd of the ease.

investments

The Compary holds nvestvents in a subsid-ary at cost ‘ess accumulated rmparment losses if an
impairmert oss 1s subsequertly reverced, the carrying amount of the mvestment 1s incraased (o the revisea
estirmate of 1s recoverable armount, but only to the exiert that the revised carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amaouJnt that would nave been determined had no impairmert .0ss been recogn Sed i priar
pcenods. A reverszl of an mpairrmert loss s recognised in the profit and 10ss account.

Lash
Casr inzludes cash . nand and depasits repayalie on demano Restricted cash represerts cash for which
the C—roup daes not have Immediate and cirect accass or for which regulatory or legal reguirerrents resirict

the use of the casn

Stocks

Raw materna.s, spare parts and corsumables are vaiued at tre lower of cost and net realisable value Where
necessary, a provisicr 1s made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective stock Cost s determined on the
first-in, frst-out (FIFOE methog

Fuel stocks (MBM and litter) are valued on an average cost basis over one to two months and provision for

unuseb.e Ytter s revewed monthly and apphed to off-site stock

Fual stoc« of siraw has been valued al the histonical cost per tonne of straw. A provision for unusabie straw
15 1dentifed on an ndividual stack pasis and 1s reviewed monthly. Stocks are usea on a fiirst 1n, 975t out
["FIFCT) basis by age of strave.

Stocks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value to the Group.

Stocks of proparty develooment waork in pragress ["WIFT) are stated at the lower of cost arna net realisanle
va:e, Cost cormprses direct materals and, where applicabie, direct lsbour costs and those overneads that
hgve peen incurred in bringing the stocks o ther present locatons and condition.
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At ezch reporting date, an assessment is rmads for rnpairment Any excess of the carrying amouet of

stocks cver its astimated zelling price lass cosls to complete and sell s recagnisada as an i parment o
through the profit and loss accourt Beversals of imparmeni (o5
loss account

are also recugr.sed n the profit and

Accrued Income

corued imcome on laans 15 calculated at the rate of interest set oult in the .oan contracie Energy incorme
accruea over the pernod in which it ~as o

N generated.

Geforred income

Ceferrad income is recogn sed 'n accorda~ce with the tenms set out ir the coract Deferred incerre is
rencased 1o the proft and los: ac ntir the perioc to which it r

Financial instruments

chosen o adopt Secticns 11 arg 12 of FRS 102 i respen oF financia  instrurrants

aa]

asic hnancial as

s, ncluding frade ana otnar recevabie: and Cash ard nank valances are ntiad

s

recogrisen ot ransachion pree, un'es tre arrangerrent constiutes s Fnanarg ransaction, whers the

wan

“tion 15 measured sl the present value of the future receiots discoumed at g market rate of inerest
Such assets are subseyuently carred at amortised ©

g rrerest met~od

st Lsng e effec

At the end of each reporting period financal assets measured at arrortised cost are
evidenice of imparment If an asset 15 impaired the impa rment 05515 the dffferer.ce
amount and the presert vaiue of the estirawed cash fows ascounied atthe assef's

rate. Tre mpairment s 8 recognsed in piofit or loss

Dther financial assels, incuding nvastrnerts in equity instrumeants whicn are not subsidianes, assotates of

jontventures, are initiaily measures a! far value, which s normaly tng transaction price Zuch assets are
sucsequently carnad at fair value and the changes 'n far value are recogr sed i profit or 10ss, excapt that
investraents in eguly mstroments that are ot puilicly rased 2nd whose fair values cannot be meas.red

rel.ably are rmessured at cost l@ss mpairmant,

Francial assats are cerecagn sed when (@t the contractual ngnis to the cash flows from the asset expire or
are settlec, or [b) substaritiady al trhe nsks and rewards of tre owr\efshp of the asset are trars*erred o
another party o7 i) contre! of the asset =as been fransferred 10 another oacy who has the praciica’ ablity

to urilateraiy s2il the aszet W an Jrre. '*@J a7G party withoul impes ng additicna. restacoons

Basic nancial L aoites, ircluding trade 3na other Layabies, cark ioans, 'cans o fellow Lroun corpanies

Yy recogrised at transacucn once, urless the L conshiutes 5

e e
3ncirg racsaction, wrers tha deot nstrurrent 1s reasured at the grasent value o the future recanls
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Debt instrumen:s are subsaguently cared at amertised cost, usirg the effectve interest rate method Fees
paid on the establishmert of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan o e extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facitity will De drawn down Inthis case, the fee s aeferred untidl the
draw-down occurs To the extent there is ne evidence that it 's probable that sorme or all of the facility wil
oe drawn down, the fee 1s capitalised as a pra payment for iquidity services and amortis2d over the penod
of the facbity to which it relates

Trade payables are cblgations to pay for goods or services trat have been acouired n the ordinary course
of business from supelers. Accounts payable are classified as current lial lites if payment is due within one
vear of less. If not, they are preserted as non-curren’ liabilites, Trace payacles are recogrised initally at

trarzaction orice and subseguently measured at amortised cost uzing the effectve inerest methad

chmr 13l fiabil ties are derecoanised wher tne Laoil'ty is extinguisted, that 1z when the contractual obligation
s discharged, cancelied or expires.

Provisions
Provisiors are made whare an event has taken place that gives the Group & legal or constructive obiigation
that prooab _,/ requires settierrent by a transfer of economic berefit, and a rel'ab.e esumate ¢31 be made of

3
the arrount of the obli gator"

Frovisiors are cnarged as an expense 1o the proft and ioss accourt in tne year that the Group becomes
aware oi the obligatior, and are measured at the best estmate at the palance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obl'gaticn, taking nto account reigvant risks and uncertainties.

Hedaing

The Grouo applies hedge accaunung for ransactions entered irto to manage the cash flow exposures of
borrowings. Interest rate swaps are held to manage tne Interest rate exposures anc are des:igratec as cash
flow hedges of floating rate borrowings Charges in the fair values of denvatives designated s cash flow
Fedges. and which are effective, are recogrised directly in eguity Any ineffectiveress in the hedg ny
relationshup (being the excess of the cumulative change in farr value of the hedging instrument sirce
ncepuan af the hedge over the cumulative cnange 1N the fair value of the hedged item since -nception of
the nedge) 1z recognized in the profit and loss

The gain or loss recognised in other comprehnensive income 15 reclassified 1o the profit and 1oss in
accordance with the cash flows of the neqges itemn Hedge accounting is discontinued wren the hedaing
nstrument exgires, no longer meets the medging criteria the forecast transact.on s no longer nighy
protatle, the nedged debtirstrament is derecognised or the tedaing instrur~ent «s terminated.

Shave capiial

Oranary shares 1ssued by tne Group are recogrised In equity af the value of the proceeds rece ved, with the
axcess over nominal value being credited 1o snare pramiurm.

?xéﬁwg:ammiimg interests

Non-controiling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's idantfiable net agsets
at the date of acauisiticn,

ét~twé«;§1&a .
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ey noonunting gadg@}mmﬁs and astimates

Tne preparaucn of fnarcal statements in compliarce with RS 102 requires the wse <f certair criical
aClourting estimates, It also requires maragemert 1o exercize ludgement v applyng the Company's
accounung pol cies Estimates and judgermenis are connnLally evaluaied and are D'uDJ or. hiztoncal

CNoudrg expectations of future event: that are believed 16 be reasonatle

expenance ang othar facle
T

)
under the arcumstarces hﬁ‘ key astimates and juadenents in precanng these finarcial stgtements are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)
Laans and aovances (o Cosiomers, including associaied accrued ncorne balances, are reviewsd for

impa rment o0 a gquarierly basis, In considenrg the need for a provisicr, m g tdetermire thew best
estmate of the expecied (uture casn flows on a case by case pasis As this estim

3 cerawr
numiter of assumplions apoul future events wiich rnay cifer from: actual cutcomes, including the
borrowe's abil.ly to repay interest and capital due in ‘uture gercds, thes gves rice o Ladgement as (o
whether there s a shortfail between tne carryirg vaue and tre far vaile of the debtor bala-ce

Maragemert rowe !

s acnica esti o grd bave therglore

at provisions aganst .oars ard advancas

performed senzitivity analysis on the orovision Tre resulis of the senstivity aratysis conclude that a crhange

ac
ol +/- one per cent ir the armount provided against the est rmatea balance at nsk woula rave resuted in

E3 6mess/mare experditure peng charged 1o the income sratement 2uing the penad, See note 13 for tre
carrying amourt of the deptors and provisions at :-D June 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress (WIP'} (estimate)

Proparty develtopment WIR s reviewed for moairment on a per.ocic bass In consdening the need for a
provision, managernent deteryane thor best esurrate of Ine recoverable value Managemernt engsge ar
expert exiarnal vaiuer 1o provige key azsJaraghons atodr future events which may dvfer from aciual
outcomes, ircluding propety valuaicns, rate of saes ard gevelopment Cosls

Trese estimates give 152 10 judgement as (o whethiar there i a shortfal tetween tre carrying value ana the
far vaiue of the nalance as at the 30 June 2022 Post vear end, maragerent have reviewed the

assurmiptiors used 1o getermine the vawe of property developrment WIF and nave observed ro changes 1n

performance that wouwd irpact the valuabion as &7 the 30

Jurie 2022 See rote L2 for the carrying amourt
of the praperty development Wik

. Purchase price agreement {Australian entities) (judgement)
The Group owns two energy generating subadiaries in Australia wh.ch have entered into porchase price
sgresments (PRAS n 2015 a~d 2021 The FPPAs |

lude & contract for arferances "CHD" whereby the

subsidiares paylrece ve amcunis from tre customer based o e differenc
+ ¥

etween a Txed selirg cnce

and ‘e attua price for etecmoily so'c to tae AusTralan e elieve me Contract s
a

cutside tne scope of FRS 102 sechion 12 asiiis for trae <

-

such arrangerenrts Tnerefore £s DeNg ac
C

crsiceraton, atner than reva.u 15 the entre contract 1o

curred olus the

e 1o the busress combinatian. Far vaiue of these corcbinatons 13 a key estimate

a Dusness combmaton s the far vaue of the consideraace
¥

G
and mcre deta s are praviced on pages 45 10 46
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate}

The provision for decormrmessioning Costs is measured at managemen's bast estimate of tne present valde
of the expenditure required o settle the future coligation to return land on which there arg operational wind
and solar farme, to ts orig:nal condrion The level of the provisions is determined o a significant degree by
the estmation of future dismantling and resoration costs, &8 well as the aming of dismantlement

Wind Farms (estirnate):

Managerrent note thal aecommissicning brovis ons 13 a cntical estimate and have therefore performed
sensitvity analysis The res,I_.\ts of the seraivimy analysiz condlude that a change of +/- one per centin the
discount rate wouwe nave resultad in £2 Irnincrease/decreass i the provsion. bSee nots 17 for the provision

a
recognised at 30 June 20¢2 Ma g ent utilise external expertice to provige an estimated cost o
1

disTantle and have used a2 discourt rate of 2% to reflect the trme i~ vaiue of money and the risks spec.hc

to the ooigaton,

Australian solar farms {judgement}):

The Grouo 1s reguired to restore the eased premises of the solar farm o thelr orgina. conaton at the end
of the lease term. A provisior was previcusly recognised. however 10 the curert year this judgerment has
beer: reassessed and mamagemem believe the lessor may wish to eitner take ttle of the assets for ether
continded use or 1o realise value n‘hrough alling the azsefs ard as such do not believe that an outflow 13
prokable to sertle this restoration obhgaticn.

UK Solar (estimate}):

During the year, a thed party performed an assessiment of the base cost of the decommissioning of the
Groups UK soiar farms The Aindings have resulted in matenial cnange in tha cost estmate ana therefore &
crovision has been recognises for tne first ime on some sites The impact }“as resuted in a provision being
raised for £18m o the balance sreet decommissioning liakility and fxed assets. As at .,.O Jure 2022 there s
ne irmpact on the profit and loss Sitas not affected are acdressed below.

UK and French Solar {(judgment):

Maragerment believe that gven the nature of these particdlar assets, the lesscr ray wish 1o enher take title
of the assets for either continued use or 10 realise value through selling the assets ard as suck do not
beheve that an cutflow is probable o settle this restoraton oblgation Managerment will continue to monitor
the situation at sach balance theet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)

The vaiue of gooawill neld by the Group and investments in subsidiary urdertakings held by the Company
15 reviewed anmahy for impairment. The recoveraoiity of these balances is considered with reference o the
present value of the estimated future cask flows. Tnece calculatons use cash flow project'ons which extend
forward .‘ore\ ast business performance together with assumptions surrcunding Tne expected li‘e of the
asset, externally prepared forecasts and va.uatons, and any adjusimenis required o the discount rate 10 take
sccount of business risk, The estimated present value of these future cash fiows 15 sensitive 1o the discourt
rate and growth rate Lsed ir the calculation, alt of which require management's judgement Testing of the
carrying value has pesn performed during the year, which has invowed several scenarios be.ng modelled
Based on this test ng anc the resultng impairment recegrised on investments, managemeant beleves there
15 sufficient headrcom o supnort the value of gooowill and investments in subsidiary entitias,

Maﬂagemem note that impairment of goodw. Il and investmerts s a critical est rmate and have therefore

I

performed sersitivity analysic or the orovision. The results of the sensitivty analysis corciude that a chang
of +/~ ore per cent in the amount grovided against the estimated balance at rizk woulc have resulted in
E5.49m less/more expenditure teing charged o the income statement during the period. See note 8 for
the carrying amaount of the gooawill and investments at 30 Sune 2022
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i

Analysis of turnover by category

2022
£'000
42,404
365,958
223,526
45,978
Horae bunding 25,034
8,930
711,830

Healtrcare aneratic

Fibre

Ctaes et XERegx PO REEs, TRSES. TRERE ) heea.

2021
£000
R
179,820
141826
42266
4878
425,302

Nnciuded o Tom biestthos anors s FI74m 2U2T B oy reating Wt e sale of retrementy liace ures,

2022
£000
Tsosou1
Europe 84,433
23,486
711830

Vlnited Simgrom

Rest of wond

T

2021
£000
584799
31,893
8610
475302

Other income

2022
£000

2021
£'000

3,550

G454




(&
it

VANCIAL STATEMENTS 350

- S ORI G OT R

Thiz s stawed after charging/{creditngl:

A P B B B e e s e €

Amortization of ntangibic assats note &
ImpsE rrent of ntangible assets note 8)
Cepreclation of rangible acsels (note i

Audizors remuneration - Company and the Group's corschidaied
finarcial statements

Auditors’ rermuneration — audit of Comaany's sabs dianas
Agdiiors remuneration — nor-auctt services

Andiros’ remuneration — tax Ccormpliance servizes

Cifference on foreign exchange

Cperatng leaze rertals

UNE 2022

2022
£'000

B T B T g TR X5 % ST B (A B 1D HEBE ok S M N P i b rat® § TR F AR R 5 B E AL ARAS BERRE L MR B Wi b

37,849
7,913
10%,.802

45

819
246
482
7,772
13,783

{restated)
2021

£000
372,704

84,697
l46

1134
513
672

4402

7502

MNote 26 detars the prior perioa adjustmients.

Wares and salaries
Socisl secunty costs

Other pension Coss

2022
£'000

2021
£'000

g

85,432
7,041

95,706

3,233
46,868

41,383
3,809
L676

The Group provides & defired contribution schemes for its empicyees in the UK The amount recognised as

an expense for the defined confribution scheme 1s shown in the table above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022

Number

2021
Number

“roduction

Administraticn

1,032
631

3
1,666

699
348

The Company had one emmpoyze other than Directors during the perod ended 30 June 2322 (2021 none)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

AT g F LB P LN B T O S i T

TR TR TSvmbiand % hw T TURRaP e T

Crooluments : B 176 _ i63

Dunng the year no pension contributions ware made in respect of tre direciors (2021 qone;

he Group has no other key managernent {2025 nore)

D

]

A namper of subsidiaries of the Group operate a cazh-zetied LTIP @ quslfy'ng employees, whereby

ern ln/r 2y render services in exchange for cash toa amount of wmieh s deterrmined by reference to tne

valuaton of the Urdarying suns cary e fair vatue of the labity for the awards made s measured at 2ach
L amd al the settlement gate Tre i valde is recogrised ovear the vastng paraa The aniount

of expense recoansed takes inio account tre best avatabie estimate of the nurmber of Luails expected 1o

vest under the service and performance conditions underlying sach awad cranied

Cash-settied share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021

Number of MNumber of
awards awards

Opermrg cotstand:

1,914 751 1,640,0FD

;ur‘tt, dur "y ths pern o6 1763 563 274 7‘:1

Closmg outstandmg balance " N ' 3678.314 - 19111 751

Trie total charge for the year was £3.133.000 (2021 £1,334,000) and a: the 30 June 2022 there was @
Latiity of £2 407,000 inciuded winin creditars greater than one yaar (2021 £1.334 0007

ﬁ NI

{nterest receivable and similar income 2022 2021

Cpee. s v E L wmes ke mes e mem T ag omean WL TSRES T TIL W an RSt oswm T uastees Tty ey B S tweoo O b

130 957

£000 £:000

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021

Irteeest On oar. R t-fnp, »;q;d 32 192 34,278

Areorusaton oF ssue Costs O hank borowings 2,597 1103
Fronnfioss or dervatve firanca mstrureents (1,235) 587

33,554 36.068

E'OOO o EOGGA
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Fooooo ooT T oas

a) Analysis of charge in year

{restated)
2022 2021
- ‘ ) i B £000 £000
P tax . - S - S— b
K corparation tax charge on proft/ticss) for the year {297} 1.648
Adjustments in respect of pncy poriogs 3,196 (2.866)
Forengn tax suffercrd 5,641 -
Total corert ax chargefcredy . g580 (1218
Deferred tax:
Crginanor ard reversal of tmeng dificrences 6,227 2,074
Agpistments 0 respect of priar per ods (3.741) (3.998)
Effect of change in tax rates 5,268 11491
rO;ll dcfcrrcd“tax N B o o 7,754 ) B 9567
Tax -cha;'ge on proﬁtl-(loss-) on or-&ina-n-'y -acti-viti-e-s . S o 1;6,294 8549

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

19% (2021 19%; The differences are exp.aned below:

The tax ass=ssed for the year 13 higher (2021 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of

{restated)

2022 2021

‘ S £000 £:000

Profit/(loss) before tax e e 47,604 (21.170)
rofit/lioss) bofore tax multiplod oy standard rate o

Corotanon to e UK of 155 G090 199 2,045 (4022

Effects of

Expenses not deduciitie for tax purposes 11,723 16,076

Other effects (868) 1,022

Income not taxable for tas purpcaes (8,102) (9,351}

Adjustments in respect of prior pencds {545} (6,865}

Effects of change in tax rates 5,041 11.485

Total tax charge for the year ) 16,294 8349

¢} Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Fnarce Act 2021 enacted ori 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of UK corgoration tas from 19% ¢
25%, effective 1 Ap~il 2023, Deferred taxes on the baiance sheet have been measured at 25% (2021 25%)
wnich represens the future corparation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

Mote 26 details the prior penod adjustments.




i
=2

4 | FINANCIAL STATE

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
= SR

Software Goodwill Development Total
(restated) rights
Group B kT £'000 . ....E000 _Fooo
cost . e TR b e B o LS SRR e oo 5 e b g o B A R A AR b e TS
At 1 2uy 2071 {restated) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acquired through business - 30042 4058 34,100

COrnpinglnng (note 27

Additons 2.125 - 1.040C
- (21,118} -
- 7,930 -
 7azase 15314

At 30 June 2022 -

Accumulated amortlsatnon

At Uy 2020 restared; 107 159,902 1.034
Crsposals - (2452 -
| oss o translazon - (152 -
irmparrmcent 7913 -
Charge for the year 12 37314 523

At30June2022 119
Net book value

At 30 June 2022

A1 Z0 June 2077 [res

77202475

540,981 13 757'
857 566,700 9, 182

The gain or translat 0n of foreign carrency dencminates goodwiilis recognised In o

ncome Arrortisatior of goodwil. 1s charged (o admimisirat o cosis
=

Setalls of the subsidianes acquired duning the year endea 30

Curing the yesr the group disposed of 2 wirz farms 17 Finland, a5 a result £2 5m of accumutated «
arncitisaticn was reco grls G N tre current yeds ard £73 3 of gooowil was realisea on the sale.
sale recognused in the profit and ocsin relat o1 o this transaction was £28m

Impairmean: of E79m haz been recognsed on gocdwl L2021 rone}

N gssets have been pledged as security for lanilties at year end (2021 renel.

Tre Corrpary had no riangiie assats at 30 Jure 2022 2020 nore:

Naote 26 gatais tne aror pencd ag;JsTmens

1557

June 2022 can oe fourd im note 27

3,165
(21.118)
7.930
761 859‘

161,042
(2.462)
192)
7913
37849

204151:

557,708

ther corprenensive

Gamn on
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

G oy s LT s

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction (restated)
(restated)

Group o EO00 EO0D  £000 €000 £000
Cos‘w b b BV B B LSRRI b 8 SR
Ab Uity 2021 restated) 8531 317467 1695437 27288 43,277 2,092,600
Aodriors 879 1536 73847 £0462 £I8,005 374480
SRl value rnovernant - - 368 - 3,254 2662
Transfers - 68 1,086 30946 (32.0701 -
Deposals (135] - (75,551} - - {76,086)
At30June2022 10533 319,071 1745511 118,686 310170 2,504,371
Accumulégéa aepregi;iéon- e U ALl T L T
Al doy 2221 4410 80,059 414,559 1290 - 510,318
Charge for b year 163 17,130 81,141 2,348 - 101,802
Disposals - - (182) {221} - 1403)
FA rmaverner: - - (7763 - - {776}
At 30 June 2022 7 4,593 107,189 494,742 ‘ 4,417 - ‘ ‘5i0,94.1
et book value e e o e et e e . SN
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
AL 30 ur& 2027 trestated) 4121 227408 1280878 25958 43277 1,581,682

Included witnin tangible assets are capitalised finance coste directly attributabie 1o bringing the assat into
use. The net carrying amount of assets held under 9nance eases incuded in plant, machinery, fixiures and
Fetings is £51.785,000 (2021: £21.534,000 ). ‘ncluded in network assets 15 a provision of £1.023,000 for
opsalete equiprment and developiment

The Compary nad no tangible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 ncne)

Note 26 detalls the pnior pariod adjustmeants
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Unlisted
investments

E‘OOO
Cost and nel book value

Total
£'000

S R

At Juy 2021 11000 11.000
Adht ons 129452 126457
Cisposals (105,000} (105.000}
At 30 June 2022 35452 35452
At 50 dure 2021 7 mpoo 11000
Subsidiary
undertakings Total
Company | s E00O £000
B e ¢ e R R s e e
At 30 Jure 2021 2311678 2,311,678
228 300 228300

At 30 June 2022 2,539,978

Accumulated |mpairments
ALE0 Gune 2021 195,312

(195.317)

Heversal of

NpAITENs

;“ o e e i
Net book value

2,539, 978
o V116 366

2,539,978

195,312
{195,312)

2,539,978

2,118,366

Detalls of reiatea urder

takings are srown 1 note 29.

Unlistea invesiments comonse the Group's noding of tne memibers capitai of Terido LLP & lending

buziness, ana s sharenolding i Bracken Tradi-g Limted Fer- co founde

e intenlion of cof‘du-utmg a procornoa of it furare trade through tre padtrersmip, A

cf un.osied investrents relate 1o nvestments and divestments n Terao L_P e liro wits Fern’

rebolzing ~ Bracken Tracing Lim
G June 2022 was ENiLE 2D Jure

_mited 1o g sUDsid diary urceriah

reguirermerts and to Labse surpius funos Ferm has a

l\
Al

w o

tme o ame Fern's

rent it Bracken Tracimg Lmeed at
Sracken T

Tre grectors do not considar Tendo L_P or

o)

Trading Limited.

Terido LB Octeber 2012 with

irec ‘rore
2 2021 Enili
s of Fern
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
B 15 S N AR
Casr includes cash in nand and deposits repayatye on dernand,

lestrcted cash represents cash for waich the Group does not Fave immediate and cirect sccess or for
whICh requigicry or [2gal requiremeants restrict the use of the cash,

2021
£'000

A A o e ok

© IR B AN B bl M F BT E o B 0 B

(lzsh at bank ard 'in kand 117141
Restricted cast €0, 592 55, 337
Cash at bank and in hand 256.415 172,478

s g T

Restriced cashiis comprised of £726,000 heid in tscrow ard 252 866,000 of cazh hed in subsidiaries with
ol-arrdal disinibuton windows.

The Company nad a cash balance of 26,422,000 as at 30 Juns 2022, none of whicn was restrnicted 12027
none;.

L N

Agn T e

Group
2022 2021
£ 000 £000

f;cngt(jﬂv& A e e 5V 5 S B € e v A e e B LD 1 533 R S
rUEl, Spare 0arts and corsumables 26,023 18,593
Progerty *we o'jmer' WP 156,918 73,8923
S 184479 94711

The amcunt of stocks recogrised a3 an expense guring the year was £120,413,000 (2021: £41,212,000).

nciuded mn the fuel, spare parts and consumables stock vaiue is a grovision of £390,G00 for unusable fue:
stock (2021 £458.000) inciuding .n property development Wil s a prov s-:0r ©f £928,000 for warranty and

site specific Provisions

There has been no impairment recogrised curing the year on stoc< (2021 nonel. No inventary has Deen
pledged as securty for hapilties (2021 none)

The Company had no swocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel.

sz;&‘ sty

Shheeas aa et

Skt celden
Sty
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- IR SN %

Group Company

(restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

. £OOO  roo0 €000 £000
Amuuntsfaumgdueaﬂer one yea? eeeemembeby asn 5 St e 4+ s T e e et
Loans and acdvances 1 cusomears 137,662 16,128 - -
Amounts falling due within one year
loans and advarioes Mo CUustomers 223,239 369,354 - -
frade dontors 42,050 16,121 392 8
Arnounts awon by related parties (note 24} - 3,950 32,950 12,751
Cther debtors 20,1959 24,972 3,843 5,008
SUO tax - 6,h02 2,527
e francial nsturments incte 23) 54,409 0,469 - -
otuedircorre 145,602 154,375 176 32616
' ~ e23161 498002 39888 50393

L0ans ard advences to cusiomiers are stated ret of prov.sions of £13,874, 000 (2021 £15,19%,C00N

{20
Prepayments arnd accruad income are stated ret of provisions of 7725000 2027 £13.741.000)

No inerest is chiarged or ariounts owed by group unaerta<ings, as the cutstanding ba.arces ac ansecared
and repayatle on demand (2021 none)

Note 26 details tre pror pericd adustments
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b VT S T S o

Group

2022
£000

(rostated)
2021
£'000

Company

2022
£000

2021
£000

werdrafts inote 18]

Tracte credilors

Onber taxahon and sncial seturty

Other creditors

Amounts due (o elated parties (note 24)
Finance cases (mcte 160;

Dernvat ve financa: instrurmonts (note 213

Accria s and deforred imcoe

87.732
58,004

8,161
24,362

2,428

256,152

75,465

4/386
23,350
55,906
z.147
143
72,087

202059

76

B

between one and five years

riote 16}

Finarce weases (ncre 10

Derivative financal instruments fnote 27

Otrher creditors

Group
2022
£000

383,070
5,899

5,364

394333

247297
6125
5415

258,857

Amounts falling due after more than five years

G S

Bar:k loars and overdrafts inote 16)
Finance ieases (note 16

Denvatve fi

Tomal cregitors fallng due aftor morne than one year

AR HPE R B R S

Group
2022
£000

2021
£'000

s,

nancial instruments (note 21)

573,416
24,676

598,092

992,425

577235
24495
42,772

644,502

203,335

The Company has no creditcrs due n grezter than one year

Amounts owed o related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand

MNote 26 details the prior perned agjustments,

|
1
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
26 L0 oon T Ll Son o

2022 2021
€000 . £000
“er732 47386
Due between one ard Aive years 383,070 24729/
Due i rrore than five years 573,416 577235

1,044,218 871518

Group

PO e O P

Cuein one

The Company had no bank oans at 30 June 2022

The bark lcans are secured against assets of the Groun with each loan as held by the subsdiary snowr celow

Interest rate 2022 2021
Stooigy Lrated © GmomhSONIApwslE0Z 429,138 438140
Cedar Ena-gy and nfrastracture Lirmitec LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% - -

3 month EURIBOR plug
120%, Fixed rate 1.70%

“LOs Energy 5 12% + & month EURIBOR 56,079 -
Boomerang Energy Lirmited & month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348 295,344

0£.49% (swap rate of 459% +
1.9% rmargin}

tMelion Renewable Frnergy UK Tiried & month SONIA plus 2 35% 85,718 103439
Dutaces Wi biotd—o PTY L 17% + BBSY 31,614 -

5% + SONIA + 2 5% -
Flwia bomes Dirted oAt + . non 12,306 -
utilisation fee

Mariagerraent Limeo Fixed rate 2 5% 43 -
1,044,218 871918

Loz Erergy 2 30,946 34,595

Darington Point Solar Farm Poy Lonited

114,02€ -

Jestec Ass

s the effectve irterbank iendng rate systerr from 1 Jaruary 2022, Tre rae change

[Vl
@]
-z
T
o
ke
oy
]
]
2
-
o
O
A
3]

)
3
{

resulted - o comrnercial rmpact io the business

Finance leases

Tre fLiure Mo Anance iease payments are as foliows:

2022 2021
£oo0 OO0

ot later than one year 2,428 3,166

ater than one yeas and rotiatar than ve yoars 5,899 6,196
Later than Aue yezrs 76,461 72,013
Toa gross cayments 84,788 81,375
less Anarce crarges {51,785) (476089)
Carrying amount of the liability S . 33,003 33766

Tr= Arnance leases primarnty reate 1o a leased tuilcing and neelthcare ecuipment Tn

3
)
-
o
w
)
4]
@]
&
@]
)
=2
=
_-
U
"
@]
5
e}
3
&%
)
(8]
[43]
w
|
vl
D
w
5
Ty

renital, renewsl o purchase opton clauses, Rents payaole -
securec aga-nst tre leazed ssseis

The Cormpany had no firarce leases at 30 June 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
I R L Oe

Decommissioning (restated) {restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
Group £'000 £000 E£°000

ALl Guly 2021 20439

ncroase recognsed in profit and (oss 21 11,455 11,516
Increase recngnised through otner cormprehensive income - 18,202 18,202
Impairment 16 - 16
Increase recognised in fixed assets 23,656 - 232656

Rerogrised on subsiziary acquisiaons - (3,568) (3.568)
Adjustment ir, respect of prior years - {5465) (5.465)
Livwinging of disconns 249 - 249

Adjustment relatirg 1o charge ir accounting estimate (3,373} - {5.573)

.

_ac

At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597 82,620

o transtation 15 - 15

3

future ©

J

The decommissioning prov:sicn 15 held 1o cover tgaters o retur- land on which there are

(
9

operatonal wind, biomass and solar farms, to therr onginal conditon. The amourts are not expected to be
utlised for in excess of 25 years

The Company had no orovis'ons at 30 June 2072

MNote 26 detaiss the crior period adjustments
The Group anc Company have the following share capital

Group 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid E£'000 £000

1616,622.011 (2021 1.436,755258) ' -

. 67
Ordiriary shares of £0 10 each 161.662 149.676

Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid T o £'000 £000

1616622011 (2021 1,496,755.255)
Crrdinary shares of £ 10 each

5 e e DI TS RS W IR ED DR { RIS B A

161,662 149676

During the year the Croup issued 129,866,754 {2021 1501192275 ) ordinary shares of £0 15 each for an
aggregate nominal vawe of 211,587,000 (2021 £15C,120,000). Of the shares issuesd during the year, total
consderation of £203,750.000 (2021, £2,316.695,000; was paid for the shares, giving rise tc a premsum of
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

F191 /62,000 (2027, 020} Ouring the year tne Group o

ordinary shares of witht an aggregate nomiral vaawe of £

of E-12021 26,844, 000) was gald for the shares, giving rise to a

Tre Group has adopfed pfedeceu or sccourtinrg principles as «t was formred as part ¢f a group

reconsucuon, trers s capital 4na share premilm accoun: are breated

3 ey had aiways
exizted Moverents in share capial ansing noln oefore ang after The restruciure are reported as Movements

the Group share zapital

o Jr*ng the year the Zompany 1ss. f'j 113.866,754 (2021 L ‘:Gl 189, 77‘% crdingry shares of EC 10 sach for a0
omrical valus of £12.987.0

fE2 J 750,00 ( d;vimg rse to 3 p’emium of

(2021 £2166,575 “J [Ju‘ ing the year t‘me Group iwrbmaﬁd nil 12021 4,444 520) of its awn

s

Ccrowith an aggregate nomirat va'ue of £n {444, CCC: Tota! conaideration
,‘J was pald for the sharas, giving nse 1o g prermiem of Enn (26210 £6,359.0050)

lass of ordinary snares Trere are NG restrictiors or the aistrication of dwadends and tre

Cash flow hedge reserve

Tre cash flow hedge reserve 13 used L recors transacl ong ars.ng fron tre Croup’s cath fow
hedging arrangemeants

Merger reserve

ro the difference benween the farr vaiue of the shares issues and tne ook

acqures

I3

Trhe moverrent in non-controlirg rterests was as ollows

Group

Note 2022 2021
£000 E O

SRS eed eaRiee T ¢ e s666 a0 meowgoERene® 0 L eiesydeBbail T e ienequavieon L oawmswended¥ DL L LakenstRERS 00 L Laavadae VoS g vas

3,721 ,57’0

le of subsidary urderiakings and sty LTSN

O nor- Uvrhgmr‘,] Irerest

27 - (1.842)

(6,622) (4,007)

(2,901) 3721
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
a8

As at B0 June 2022 thiere were no contingencies across the Graup or Campany

ZL e
Carrying amounts of financial assefs and lianiit es

Group Company

trestated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
Grou_pv_ ‘ E£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000

[— .

Carrying amount of financial assets

S eiant hmhrheble hod b e ARenERARRE ARG b B R § R 2 RRR LR hunhiRn

Dahtinstrurmrents measurag at amaortsed oot 423,150 420 556 4,235 17,767
Measured at far value througn oroft and loss - 6469 - -

Moasured at far value hrough o 54,409 - - -

Carrying amount of financiat liabilities
Measired at amorised cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16

Measured at fa's value through otner corr.prehensye income - 42772 - -

Ngte 26 detzls the prior period adjus ments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
Trhe Group's financig’ nsk manzsgement seedd (o minirise the exposdre o market nis<, credit risk, lowdity
and cash flow risk, and energy market risk

a) Market risk
Energy market risk
or s exceriencing signitcart turbulence and tnere s a r sk that forecast levels of income

e
are

1

Tre energy

not achwevea due 1o changes in whciesale ereqgy prices, off-ta<e cortracts or government supsiGies
Changes in Gover~ment policy, or regulator interveniion may resuit in recuced income streams within the
¥ gu y

group due to acdtonal levies

Currency risk

Trie Groug prasents its consoldatea Rirandial statermerts in sterling and conducts gusnes: .0 a nurnaer of

other currencies, prinaipally Euro ana Ausrelan dolar Conseguently. the Grous s exposed o forenn
exchnarge rsxk oue to cxci~ar1ge rate movements, which a®ect the Group's transactona: expenses and the
ransiation of earming and net aszets of s non-steing oceralons

Transactional exposures

Trarisacional cxposures arse from sdmin.ssirative snd other cxoe " Currencles oiner than the Group's
presentational curreray (Stering) The Group erters it 1o forward foreign excnarge conacts and tore gn

excharge swaps tom

the exchange rate risx for carair foregn currency payabios ard recepts. The

forward currency Conracis and swaps are measured at fair value, whicn s determaned using va{ua:iem

recnrigues that Ltilise cbhiervable inputs The <ay nputs wsed in valung the der vatves are the forward
excharge ramwes for GBP ALD ang G3F EUR On 20 Cune 2Me?

L was ar: asset of trn (2021 26 462 C0C) and 2 dab.

o of the forcgr currency
22 £143,000)

contrac

Translational exposures

Balance sheet transiational exposares ar se or conscidaton on the rerranslat on of the balance sheet of

non-stering operatcns iro ster: ng, the Crous's presentatoral currency. The evel of exposure 1s reviewss

oy managenert and e potential ‘oreign exchiange movemert s witrin 31 acceptable level of nisk a~a

“herefore, typically, the Group's policy @ not to actively nedge thess expotures

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to fluctuations inin

borowing arrangerments with floatirg rato nterest, a swap arrangormren: s entered nte 1o Nx 2 pornon of
= The oortion of Interest o he fixed s

Mar agenent Can e.gct whether 1o nedge account for these

erast rates oris borrowinags Where 1ng Group enters intc

the interest in orgor 1o m':-r:ate 395} nst ar rerease in nterest ra

azsessed on a Case by’ cae bz

arrangements on an wdwic‘uat transaction Lasis anc nsve eleis

rate swaps. The swaps a'e bazed o 2 prngpal aT.ount of tne loar

O 30 June 2027 tre cutstanaing rterest rate swaps have a ma of flen years ar"d the fair

o
yvalue s N an atset postor of F54.405 000 2027 aanikty of £42 62970

Price risk

The Groun s a smort- 10 meciur e ender o the resdental cropery markel "o the extenn iraitrere 5
deteriorat on in e leyel oF ise prices in IS NS pro

3gainsy, there iz a nsx that t-e Grow
nature of Tne loars ang th2 conse’
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Credit risk
Cuserrer credit r sk s rmibigated througn the Group's credil corirpl podces, which are in p‘acc O ensure
that cur customers Mave an agpropriate cred @ history and are monitores on an ongong Has’

c) Liquidity risk
guicity risk are managed by ensur ng that suificient cash is available o fund continuing and future ocerations

Liguidity risx arises on bank .oanz i §.ace across

rie Group and 1s managed througn careful Monienng o
coverants and sensit e leve's of debt Borrowing is on a

long-term basis, whereas GJr revenue s recawead
throughout the vear, as well a3 inferest and redemptiors on odr short-terrm .can bock Cash flow risx is
er

maraged through ericeng cash flow forecasting to ensure receipis are sufficient 10 meet lBbiliies as thay

fall cue
22 \,.(7)'\»_‘» ~ R ;V‘m‘“(\"\l
Artne year eng the Group hao captal commitrments as folows

2022 2021
Group ) £.'000 '
Contractan for but not provided i these firancia. stacenrents 347' 254 G0,156

Undrawr facbhies onans to horrowers 173,600 92683

At 30 Jurie the Group haa total future m nimumn lease payrments under nor-cancellalle operatirg lease

W

as follows

2022 2021

Land and Other Land and Other

buitdings buildings
S £000 £000 R aeiess IO sheicser
Payments due ' o o
Not later thars one year 8,707 661 8021 749
Latzr than one year and not ater than five 31,627 726 30,369 1.686
years
Lat fives years 95,664 - 118,932 9

135,998 1 387 157332 2444

The Group had no otrer off-balance shee! arrargements (2021 nonel,

Under sectiors 3944 and 4794 of the Compan'es Act 2C0€, the parent company Fern Trading Lirnited has
guararteed at ouistanding Vabilites on those comparies taking the exarmption to wihich the subsichanes tst
on pages 79 1 S0 were subject to at the 30 sune 2022 until they are satisfied in full. These Lagilities total
E91Em Such guarantess are enforceanle against Fern Trading Limited by any oerson to whorm any such
dability is cue.

The Conrpany had no capital or other commutrerts at 30 June 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
e R R b

Qn 11 July 2022, Ferr Tradirg Development Limded ('FTEL), & subaiaiary of the Group, successiully sola

LDarlngton 2o nt Holdco Ply Limited o Octopus Australia rv‘«azter Trust Asrmal profit of 250,500 was miade
ontne sate.

On
mobile cerses from Trree UK. vea a Strateg ¢ Con Chv ty Agreemerrt, thus maxg the arst sied towaras

the 1st of Decemper 2022, the Group agauire ig%ts to a 25 creci voucher and the rgnt 1o use

becornrg an mokile virtual rnetworlk ope-ator.

2@‘%‘ \n‘ LT DL Tl T

Under FRS 102 23 1A cisciosures need not be given of fransactions entered nto between two or more
rnemniers of a Group, prov ded that any supsiciary which s a carty 1o the ransacdons '-mc;'wly cined Ly

such a memrger

Du.r‘ng e year, fees of £775934 000 (2021, £61.154, CO—C'} wiere crarged 1o tne Greup by Octopus
t

e entily Octopus Investments

nvestrmants Lmted, g relsien party doe 1o stz signif cant ‘nfluence ove

Limited was recharged lcgal by tne Group. AL e

a {
yvear end, an amount of £5500 2021 £215,600] was outstand ng which 's imcludead 'n trade creaitors.

The Group s entitied w0 a profit share ac & resalt of its mvestiment .n Ternido LR a relsted pariy due to key
N common. In 2022 a share of proft equsl 1o £5,249 000 12021, £445000) ~as
been recoan 5?0‘ by tne Group. At the year

Maragermncnt personne
e~d, the Group ras annterest 1 tne member's casital of
0 (2027 F11,005,000] and accrusa income due of £8,276 500 12021 £479.3065)

Tre Grodp engages in lending activities wh.cn inciude balances orov.dea to re-atea partie:s Regard na

el es with <oy maﬁa'fmm* persernel in commoen, loans ¢f 263 490,000 (2021 £173,224.000), accraed

ircorre of FL15,/789000 (2027 £26,.203.000! ana deferred imcome of £ (2021, £101. 000 wee guistar

375, LE7581L0C0) anc feas of £354,000 (2022

end Durng ne year intérest income ¢

ar
:‘536_00{): were recogrised in rewgtion o tresa loar

Curing the year the Groun acquired 3 réserve power comparies from comoanies managec by Ootopus
27

investmen:s umited, a relatec party See niote 27 al for derals of the camrparias acquired

sar 30 June 2022 Enl (2021 £3950,275) was owed to the Company by Bracken Traci~g Limied, 3 reated
party by “ey maragemen: persornel in corrron

Cither than the ransactions disclosed above, the Company's other relaied party tranzactionrs were w.ih its

-

wholly owned subsidiary merrbers of tne Grouo,

Iri the opirior of the dreciors, tnere 12 #o WLmMste cortraling pary or parent compary

< v
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

E6 vl ironTreeT

a) Group structuring review

We nave conducten a review of prior years accounting treatment of intercompany restructunng. In this
review managerrent identified uramorused gocowill balances in relation to tnese transacticons. We have

agjusted the previous years (¢ refiect the implemeniaton of amortisation backdated to when the relevant
trarsachions occurred, Trne accurrulaied irnpact “or the gooadwill amartication in the prof t and loss for 2021

was L8m (20200 £5 Zr) the movemernt of £2 7m nas been restated taroughout the 2021 comecarative

nurnbers. A summary of tre imoact of the correction s provided below:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated}
Group £000 E.’O'O’O‘ - £’000
Goonwil 583,588 {£,335) 578653
Retaired esarnngs 41,185 5,335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated}
Grou ] e £000 £000 £'000
Cooowil, 602,711 (8.049) 584,662
Rotaned carmings (12.5,920) 8,049 (115,871

As part of the reviewy of the interg-oup restructunng merticned above, maragemsant identified ore of the

restructdres had beer Incorrectly accounted for i1 a sub section of the grougz. No further erors were
discovered in the review. The accumulated mpact for goodwill amortisation in the profit and loss for 2021

was £2.5m {2020, £1.3m), tre movement of £1.2m has been restated throughcut the 2021 comparative
numbers This impact 1o the 2020 cpenirg retained eamings was offset by 2. 1m written back agains: bad

debt expenses. Managament have corrected the identfiad error with the following impact:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated}
Group £000 ~_£'000 £'000
Gongat 587,988 (29,183 554,805
Retained carnirigs 41185 899 42,084
Cebrors 842,548 (2.724) 839,825
Crediiors: amounts falling due within one year (232,813) 486 (232,317}
Fixeri assets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Year ended Accumutated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated] {restated}
Group £000 o £'000 X £‘°°°,,, &
Goodwdl o 60271 w2rses | sia748
Retaimed earnimas {123,920) {321) (124,241}
Jebtors 600,726 (2.724) 558,002
Creditars arnounts falling due within one year (207,318 456 (206,822}
Fixed assets 1551170 30,512 1.581.682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment
We have conducied a review of al conso

5 &t subsections of Ire group We have dentfed an
: enterad as a consosdation entry and had
subseguenty not been reverseq We rave checked tre tax per subsid.ary account ang have ersured that the

error relating @ 201% when geferred tax ad

relevent balances are correct. The eror was nosted at a corsoldated leve, orly ang Nas now been correctec:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)

Group ) o £'000 £'000 E 000
Remaned earrings 41,185 (4,764) 36421
Creditors amourts fading due witnr one year (232,813 4764 28,049

Tris has a krnioc< eSect into June 2021, the restated balances are at fol.ows:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
20 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated}
Group E£'0c00 £ 000 E'OOO
Retained earrmings (123.920) (4,764} (128.684)
Creators amouris ‘Giling aue waltir one year (207,318) 4764 (202,554)
N pregcanng the tax computations for 2022, the Group's tax advisors Fave noticed an overicoked

assumptior in D’& VioUs years tax censaidation calculatiors Within the oreviousy unreccgnced deferred tax

%)

ssels haeld with in the grouo scre were avallable ¢n a consolidaed level 1o offset the Group's deferred tax

‘akility. On an incividual companry basis the ceferred tax in previous yeass nad neen correctly recogrised. A
part of tnese deferrad assers are ir relation 1o cash flow nedges neld within the group wh'ch are accounted
for within other comorehensive incomre, The accurmaiated :mpact for the tax cnarge  the preft and 10ss
for 2021 was £15m (2620 £15.31) the MaoveTie f 300K has beer resiated throughout the 2021

comearalive nums

i

A summeary of the impac: of the carreclon s orovided Daeiow

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) ({restated)

Group o £'000 £'C00 £000

Retained sarrings 41,185 {15,299) 25,886
Cash flow hedge reserye 63837 {2.875) 59,962
Deferrad tax provisions {36,484) 19,1 /4 (17.310)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)

£000 £000 £000

Cash fow hedae reserve 17.088 (2,119) 14,979
Deferred tax provicions i (38,145} 17,212 (20,933

Summary of prior period adjustments:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

N £000 £000 ‘ £000

GS ST e e e e s oo cment &D41185‘(138;’29) 0‘27356

583988 {34,517) 549,471

842,549 (2,724) 839,825

Fixed assels 1,346,655 30,512 1,377,167
Dieferrad tax prov sons (36.484) 19.174 {17.310}
Cashi flow neage resorye 63,837 (3875) 59,3962
Creditors arnaunts falting due wathin one year (232 81%) 5255 {227,554}
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) {restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £000
Reigred earmings o (123,920) (12,129) (136,049}
Gooawil 602,711 {36,011 566,700
Debtors 600,726 (2,724) 598,002
Fixed assgts 1,551,170 30,512 1,581,682
Ceferred tax provisions (3R.145) 17,212 120,933)
Cash {low necqge reserve 17098 (2.119) 14,979
Creditors. arounits falling due within ore year (207,318) 5259 (202.059)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

27 -

a) Reserve Power acquisition
On 2 July 2027t

far consigeraticn of £18

the Grcup ac

Tha o

dowing fanles surmmarnse the

Cons:deratlon

Total consideration

o hagilities assumed at the acguisitio

sured 9 reserve power stes through the ourch

p

consideral on pad by the Groun, the

n date

[e )

arvaue of th

e of L00% of the share capital

ssets accuirad,

£'000

Detailz of the far value of the net assets acauired ana goodwi! arsing are as follows
Book value Adjustments Fair value
£000 £000

Trade and ger recevacles
Premayments

Catn and cash equivalents
sther crecits:

Trade and

Lf)am

Net assets a; i

5 O’i‘nrlll

Total consuderatlon

£000

F T R TR IT T

7,858
(2,206}
{(58.816)
28,553

Goodwll resuing from the busis

“re consol dated statement of com

profit a‘tar wax of LEE6.000 1 respe

S5 COMBINENCT Was .

prehens ve incorne for the year inclu-
ct of this acquesition

STk

(28552

e At RAEE SRR A e o

52235
294
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b) Doveryard Limited acquisition

On 22 October 2621, the Group acquired Doveryard Limited anc 1ts subsiciary through the purchase of
160% of the share capital for consideration of £23,414,000.

The foilowing tables sumimarnse the consideration paid by the Group, the farr value of assets acquired, ana
habilaes assumed at the acquisition date

£000

- 12.377
v attnsutable cos: 1,037
Total consideration 13,414

Dretalis of e farr value of the nst assets acqguired and goadwll arisirg are as follows:

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
goc0 .. Fo0O . .EO00

meedyassﬁs . y 5697 o e . o -
Trada ana oiner recevablos 52 - 52
Prepayments and accrued income 193 - 153
irade and otner creditons [467) - (467)
Newmssaures ae L

s
LaG

13067
13,414

Total consideration

Goodwil. resutiing from the business combinauor was £13, 067000 and nas an estimated Jseful tfe of 25
vears, reflacting the Iifespar of the assets acquired.

The consotidated siatement of comprenensive income for the year ncludes £nil of revenue arnd a loss

before tax of £123.C00 n respect of this acauisition




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c} Dulacca acquisition

Cn 27 Augast 2021, the Group acguired Dudacea W Holdeo 2TY Ll and i three subsidizres through the
purchase of 100% ¢f the snare capital for consideraton of £115 680,000

Tre ‘alowng tables summnrarise the consideration paid oy the Groug, tne “a rvaluc of the astets acquires,
nd the labiliies aswuame at (e acausiton date Ahst of the entities acgared included ir note 29

&

Consu!eraimn AUD'OOO Exchange Rate o £'000

Cash - N o ' 217557 18904 115,085
Directly attriputabie costs 1126 18904 595
Total consideration 218,683 115 680

Detals of the fair value Of the net assets acquired and intang:ble ariz ng are as faliows:

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair

values value values value

) ~AUD000 . AUD 000 AUD'DOO £'000 £’000 £000

Trade and otter receraties 10,131 - 10131 5357 - 5,357

CAasi ang Cash efulvaiants 163,072 - 103.072 54,525 - 54,525
ncomse (10, r-?57) - (10 954‘ 5 793; -

209,884 - 209,884 111,026 -
2,799

Total consnderatlon 7 218 683

115,680

30 years,

Intangibles resulung from e g<set purcrase s

raflecting tne ifespan of the assets acquired

jat}
=
>
0
[
C
)
I
a8
2
O
et
—
(1
<
6]
M
o
T
Q
]
a
ol
o
0
%)
)
!
¥

The consa. dated statement of comprehensve ncome far the ye

tax Of £E227.0000 respect of this acquisiicr
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d} Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2021, the Group acquired Zestec Asset Mangernent Lirmited a project sources for rooftop
solar, tarough tne purchase of 100% of the share capital for cons.deration of ££765000.

The following tables surmmarise the consideration paid by the Group. the farr value of assets scquired, and
labilities assumed at the acquisition date,

Cons:deratmn £'000
Leferrec consideration -
D\rer,tg atlzibutaple costs 1,063
Total consaderatlon - S S 4,765

[2etal:s of the fair value of the net assets acquired anid goodwil ansing are as follows.

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

£'000 £000 £'000

S — IR s s e o

o oiner crediors {574} - (574)

Trade anc otner recevaoles 400 - 400

Cash and cash equivalents 1,019 - 1,018

Qther loans (46} - (46)
Nemssem acqu|red s e e L e 955
Total consideration e 4 765

Coodwil. resulting from the bus ness combination was £3,810,000 and nas an estimated use‘ul life of 10

years, reflecting the esumated lifespan of the assets acqured.
The consclidatad statement of comprehensive income for the year includes £198,000 of revenue and a loss

before tax of £494 000 1n respect of this acgLlisiton,
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e) Elivia Homes acquisition
On 23 May 2022, tne Groun acguirec Elvia Hoidings Lmitad and s subsudiares, through tne purchase of

sL
LOO% of the share capital for consideration of £3%1,684,000

The following tables summarize the consideration pad by the Group, toe ‘air vaiue of assels
latilities assumed at the acouisition date. A list of the entilies acquired are inc uned m note 29,

Consideration i ;’009
\:ash e TEIRAIXIICR RN T T ykn WAL w T T w0 2% e D usa s mwavavseaus 4 0 aises w n oumem % meamewasswasasssmvevs mwesoue 3 oo w oyl “”“”‘y”é;{)"‘é@é'w
Directly aitrioutable costs 685
;i;t;tal consideratiotl B B e 31,684

Detalz of the fair value of the net assets acquired and goodwill ansing are as foiows

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

E'OOO £000 £000

Fixed azsets 4]8 - 418

Intangible assats 11,767 ~ 11.767
Stock £9,249 - 69,539

Trade and other debiors 2,609 - 2,603
Cash and cash equvalonts 11.603 - 11653
ACCruals and deerec Incorme {420) - [420)

- (G20
(1400) 4600

Provistons

>

Deferred lax

Tm’ju a“r* othrr <

Net assets acqulred . (1400) . V30133 “
Soodwill 1551

Total consideration - 31.684

Goodwill resulting from tne busimess comznat on was £1 552000 ana has ar esumated useful Lfe of

YEArs, reflect Hale] the lifespan of the assets acqurea,

Tre consolidated statement of comprehanswve rcome for the year inc.udas revenue of £25 234 000 and a
proht pefore tax of £1.502,000 in respect of this acausrmon.
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P2 B N T SRS B L PL U LR TOl P T

Our reported results are prepared it accordance witn Jnited Kngdom Accounting Standards, including
Fimancal Reparting Standard 102, as detaled n the Financial Statements starting on page 35 of the Annual
Repori. Ir measuring our pericrrnance, the financial meazures that we use incluge those that nave beer
dernved from our reported resulls in order 1o elim:nate factors that d-stort year-on-year compariscns. Trese
gre considered no-GAAP firancial meazures

Net debt
We provide net cettin additon to cash and gross debt as a way of asseszing our overall cash position and it
s cormputed as fol.ows

2022 2021
Note £000 £ UOO

R B BRI EY R BERE ERE EES AR ageg R B RS L R 5 R b Bad IO P S i TR NP F S W E A

Bark loans and overdrafts H3) 1,044,218 871 918
Otrnier inans 5364 -

Grt-:)ssdebt”- T 1049582 o 871918

11 (256,415] (1/2 478)

Netdebt 793,167 699,440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
EBITDA

Larnings before interest, tax siaton and arrortisat on (EBITDAT is calcu.ated by adjusting orohit after

tax for interest, tax, deoreciato and arnortisation, ir addition toncome ana experses trat do rot relaie to

re day to day cperatore of the Group We provide EBITDA in addit o~ "o orofit after 1ax as it aliows us o 1
assess our performance witnout the effects of financing and capital exoerditures

{restated)

2022 2021

Note £000 £000 :

Profit/{loss) for the financial year 31,310 (31.012)

Add

Armortisanon of ntangible assets ¢ 37843 37704
7913 -
101,802 84,697

33,554 36,067 5

Irripairreert of ntargibie assots

o oo

Deprecation of tangihle asses

Irterest payvable and sirmilar expensas &

Exceprional items 1,108 -
Ta / 16,294 §,349
Less
Ircorne forn othor ives asset nyestmants (5,249) {449}

Skare of cperat ng orofit In jomt vesture - {1755}

Frofiv o zisnesa. of cubsidianes (29,532} [(28,568)

irterest recawable gnd similar income o (130] 997}

EBITDA 194,916 104036

Noie 26 detalls tre prior pencd ad;ustments

|
|
i
i
|
|
|
1
1
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

29

Details of the subsidiary undertakings are as fol.ows:

Adaunds Sotar SPV 1 Limited”
Agriscl-Z SARLY

Al Networks Limited™
Allpoints Fibre Limiteg®”

Auchencarroch Erergy Limitea®”
Aaguririe Land Company L tedt™
Averiue Solar Farr Limited™
Banbury Fower Limited™

Batisnlare 5 SARLY

Batisoare 7 SARLY

Beetiey Erergy Limited™

Baighton Erergy Limied’

Beinneun Wind Farm Lid™
Belihcuse Energy Limited™

Birch Estate Sowar Limied™

Blaby Sclar Farm Limnited™

BNEG IOW Lirmted™
Bolam Energy Limited”
Boomerang Energy Limniied
Boreas Energy Limited™
Bratton Fleming Limited™
Breck Solar bimited™

Bryn ¥r Cdyn Sclar Developments Heloings
Lirrted™

Eryn Yr Odyn Solar Developments Cimiteg”™
Bury Power Limited”

Cadcxon Reserve Power Lirnited”

Cacizs cnergy Lirmiteg”

Carle Lirmited®

Country of
incorpqratt on

UK
UK
France
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

(8]:4

UK
UK
UK
UK

Ireland

Class of

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

100%
100%
10C%
100%
100%

100%
100%
1007
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

_ Holding activity

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Holding company

Fibre network
producton

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Holding comipany
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holtding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

auasaa

Cazwell Sf lar Farm Limnite

Cathk n Erergy Limited®™”

Ca silgey Limeg v

Cadar Lrergy &

CE>E Berceronre SARL’

Certrale Eo'lenre de Production d =rergie de

Granidbois SARLY

CEPZ de |z Salesse

C ERE de Lacormpe [Certrale Ecilie
Froduction d° Energse de Lacombe) SARLS

CEPE de Marsarine AR

CEPE Faut du Saule’
CEPE de la Roche Guatre Riveres SARLY

CEPZ dupays de 5t S

I

ERSSAS

7

D

Chelsor Meadow Energy Lnuted”
Chusoon Sotar Farm Haldin
Chuttenirg Scar Twe umitea™
Cilgwyr Encrgy wrnted’
Clarin Farer Limnitec™
Clararnond Sctar SPY L Limited™

CL2 Developments Lirmited”
Ci= Envirogas Limitea™

C._= Services Limited”

CL™E 1991 Lirteq’

£ 12498 Limited™

= ormred

nne de

Country of
mcorporat:on

et b hsssgssgEAy e

UK
UK
UK
UK

France

France

France

France

France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LIK

UK

Class of

. shares

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Crdinary

Crdinary
Grdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Principat

Holdmg actnvuty

LS TIIE L T

160%
160%
1G0%
100%
1G007%
1007%
106%

10G7%

100%
100%
160%
160%
100%
160%
190%
100%
160%
160%
100%
160%
160%
100%
100%
100%

o

10

]
3

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Erergy geheratlon

Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Eriergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding cornpany
Energy generation
Helding company
Energy generation
Darmant cornpany
Energy generation
Energy generaticn

Dormant company

Provision of OsM
services

Dormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Holding company
olding compary
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generauon
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

ﬁiﬁlﬁ ‘ Mw)j{}fgf,&,ﬂgﬁ!i"" shares Hq;ding activiliy

CLPE ROC - 34 Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
TLPE ROC ~ 4 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
CLPE ROC - 4A Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Clyne Power Limiied™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Colsterwarth Energy Linmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Connon Brdge crergy Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Coteskacn Energy simited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cour Wwind rarm (Scotand) Limrged ™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crapre:l Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crayfern Homes (Soutr Coast) Limited"’ UK Ordinary  100% Ej‘l’;fggri?éi
Crayfern bimited®! UK Ordinary 100% ggrr;sé;:??ur;lsi;gs
Crayfern Suriley (Sinfold) Liritedt: UK Ordinary  100% Ej‘l’jlfgg‘é?etgz
Craymarsh Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cressing Solar Farm Limeted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Culvery Power Limited™ UK Grdinary 100% Energy generation
Cynor Power Lirnited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cafer Reserve Fower Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dairy House Solar Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Deepdale Farm Solar Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Coveryard Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crapers Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca Erergy Project Co PTY Ltg®? Australia COrdinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca Erergy Project FinCo 2TY widh? Australia Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
Dulacca Erergy Project Holdeo Co BTY Lta? Austratia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Culacca WF Holdco PTY Ltgt? Australia Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Cyffryn Brodyn Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% tnergy generation
Eakring Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
Elecsol Camargue SARL? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsci Frarce 7 SARL? France Crdinary 90% Energy generaticn
Elecsot Frarnce 11 SARLS France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
Elecsol Frarce 15 SARL? France Ordinary 1003 Energy generation
Elecsol France 19 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation

SO SUURRANES
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name - incorporation shares Holding activity ]
Flecso. France 22 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecso. France 24 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsc. France 25 SARL? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Elecso. France 28 SARL* France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Elecso. France 41 SARL? France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Elecso: Haut var SARLY France COrdinary 100% Eneray generat:on
Flios Energy 2 France SAST France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elios Energy 2 Lirrited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elios Energy 3 France SAST France Ordinary 100% Holding company
£0GS mrergy Helding: 2 Lirstea” UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
Flios Frargy Holagings 3 Limited™ UK Crdinary 160% Helding company
Flioz Energy Holamgs Limitea™ UK Grdinary 100% Holding company
Elios Rerewaole Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Hclding company
. . - Construct f
Elvia Develoornent Finance rnited UK Ordinary 1C0% EnsirLclion o
darmestic buildings
Ordinary Financial services
Elrvia Roldings Limited UK Deferred 100% ; o N
holding companies
Preference
- : ‘ Construction of
va Homes (Certral) ted! ( ry 0% - , ‘
Elva Homes (Certral) Limited LUK Ordinary 100% comestic buildings
Elivia Homes (Dormant 2) Lirrited !t UK Ordinary 100% Constrgctwoh o
domestic buildings
Elvia Homes {Grange Read) Limiteg' UK Ordinary 100% COHSUUCMOG of
o - domestic buildings
el 1
Elivia Momes (Netlay) Limiteg! UK Crrdinary 100% Devetoprnent Cff
bullding projecis
14 X t \t' £
Zivia Homes (Southern) Lirwea®’ UK Ordinary 100% Construction of
domestic buitdings
. e H £
Elivia mornes Zurbitont wreitedt UK Crdinary 100% —onstruction ©
domestic buildings
Elviz =tomes Lirmreg? LK Ordinary 100% Del‘ug:aopmerut of
buitding projects
Etvia Morth L miteg” UK Ordinary  100%  Dovelopment of
building prosects
Construction of
Clivia Oxforg Lireed®t 1K Ordinary 100% dOme“jC bu:ldl‘ngs
Buying and selling of
owr real estate
. ek ¢
Elivia Scutn Lmiteg™ UK Ordinary 106y~ Constructono

dormnestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Elwvia Southern Lirmted!

Elicornbe Lmitegd™

Frergy Power Resonrces amited™

EPR Ey Limited”

tPR Eye Limites™

EFR Glanford Limited”™

EPR Renewable Energy Limitec™

EPR Scotiand Limitec®”

EPR Tretford Limited”

Eucabyptus Energy Holdngs Limited™

Eucalyptus Energy Limited”

Fettwel: Energy Limited™

Fera Energy Cour Hoidings Lmited”
Fern Ereqgy Holdings Limited™

Fern Energy Limited™

Fern Energy Wind Holdings Limited”
Fern Fibre Limted"”

Fern Healthcare Hold'ngs Limited™
Fern Infrastructure Limited™

Fern Renewable Energy Limited”™
Fern Rooftop Solar tA) Lirited™

Fern Rooftop Solar (BBDY

Fern Reoftor Solar (Zestec) Limited™
Fern Trading Development umited™

Fern Trading Group Limited

Fern UK Power Developments Limited™

Fbrophas Limized™
Four Burrows cimitec”™

Fraisthorpe Wnd Farm Lmited™

Country of

Class of

incorporation shares

UK

LUK

ILIK,

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

B e b 4o P 4 ) e i s 0 O % 8 5 i e s el 5L T TR SR AR R IR

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary A

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ho[ding

Principal
activity

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10G%

Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and selling of
own real estate

Energy generation

Energy project
developrment and
management
SErvICces

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Hotding company
£nergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Helding compariy
Holding company
Hotding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding compary
Holding company
Supply of fertiliser
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Garlaff Energy Lirnited”

Giganat Fibre Ltd™

Gaganet Lirmited”

Glenchamber Wind Energy Limited-*"
Grange Wind Far Limited”
Guardbride 52 z.0.0"

Harbourre Power Limiteg™

Haymaker (Mount Mill) Lid™

hhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh A6 % WNERRPEE % XTTEREXTTASREENTT TR

Haymaker (Nalewood) ~oidings Lirted™

Hayrmaker (Natewood) Zid”

Hayrmaker {Oakiards) Holdings Limited”
Hayrmaker {(Oaxiands) Ltd”

Helm Power 2 Limitea”

Halm Power Limitad”

Higher Krapp Farrm Limited™

Hil End Farm _ormited”

Hollarmecor L mited”

Huil Reserve Power Lirmsted””

Hursit SPV T Lirited™
Irrvinghar Power Limited™
Irwell Power Lmired™

Jameson Road Enargy Lirited™
Surassic Frore Holdings Limited™
Jurassic hire Lirmies

Hiin Power Cmted™
Larigan Power Lim ted””
Lenrar Sciar Lrnited”

Little 7 Selar Limited™

Littleton Sclar farm _ miteg”
LLY Comrruncatiors Lid™

Loddon Bower Lmted”

Country of

incorporation

Class of
shares

UK

UK

Ul

UK
UK
Poland
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
IJK
LUK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK

UK
UK
UK

LK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

SUPTRR—

Holding activity )

b ARARGEE B RS G R

100%

1C00%

100%

1060%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

G0%

160%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

Principat

Dormant company

Fibre network
production

Fibre netwark
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy genaration
Haolding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
nroduction

Energy gerneraticn
Energy generation
Energy genreration
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation

sessase 4av v peae oo
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of

yame xxxxxxxxxx “ incqrpga:agion shares Ho!ding
Lovedean Limited” UK Ordinary 100%
Luminance So.ar Limted™ UK Ordinary 100%
ML2 Soaations Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Manston Tnorre Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
March Erergy Lirrited” UK Ordinary 100%
Marden Power Lirrited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Marley Thatch Soar Limiteg” UK Ordinary 1G0%
Meadows Farm Urnited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Melbourn Solar Lnmited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Melten LG Znergy Limited” UK Ordinary 100%
Melten LG ~olding Limired” UK Ordinary 100%
Melton LG ROC Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Melton Renewabie tnergy (Holdings) Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Melton Renewabile Srergy Newco Lirmited™ UK Qrdinary 100%
Melton Renewabie Erergy UK Lmited UK Ordinary 100%
MilHIll Farm Solar uimized™ UK Ordinary 100%
ringay Farm Holding Limited™ UK Crdinary 100%
MIP Decoy Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100%
MEP Strete Lid™ UK Crdinary 100%
MSP Tregassow Limited” UK Crdinary 100%
MTS Haichlangs Solar Lid™ UK Ordinary 100%
Mevern Power Limitea™ UK Crdinary 100%
New Row Farm Limuted™” UK Crdinary 100%
Newlands Solar Limited”” UK Ordinary 100%
Nrinis Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 100%
Morth Perroti Fruit Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 100%
NGrthwich Power Limiied™ UK Crdinary 100%
MNaotos Erergy Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Cgmore Power Limed” UK Ordinary 100%
Oldhall Energy Recovery Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Cine Ashford Healthcare Limited UK Ordinary 89%
One Hatfield Sospital Limited UK Ordinary 90%

Principat
activity

o B P TSI BB " R g ST

Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Frnergy generatian
Energy generation
Energy generation
tnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding comparny
Holding company

Asset leasing
company

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company

Provision of
healthcare services

Provision of
healthcare services

ek




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 202

™

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name __incorporation shares ) Holding activity
Cne Healthcare Partners Umited UK Ordinary 857 Heolding company
Cirra Wedgeril: Solar Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Cria Wedgehll Solar Lirvted” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generaton
Palfreys Barton L rted” LK Ordinary 1006% Energy generation
Parc.au Hownas Lmited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Parcau amsed” UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
. - Fi 3
Fark Zroadband Limted UK Ordinary 100% lbre ne.twork
production
Faarmai Solar 2 Ltd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
Sitchford (Condovar Arhela & Stockbatahd
l\wt::‘( f-ondcyer e Srockoaten UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Zitts Farrn Lomized™ UK Ordinary 100% Ensrgy generation
Porinos Sclar Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Hclding company
Pyrms Lane Sclar Lig™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Quueens Fark Road Energy Lirmtad™ LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
C ire
Rangetord Care Limsted™ UK Ordinary 100% —Are services for a
N retirement village
Rangeford Chertsey Limites™ UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
¥ ’ development
. . tire itlag
Rangeford Crencester srmited” UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
o development
Rangeford Diorking Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Retirement village
development
Ranceford Howings Lirrited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
- Retireme age
Rarigeford Pickenng Lirrited UK Ordinary 100% etrement village
development
Rangeford RAP L mien” UK Ordinary  100%  hedrementvilage
development
Rangeford Retiremert Living Holdings Lid™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
. . P N . o Retirement village
rtangeford Stacletard Limsad UK Ordinary 100%
development
Regches ~ar~ Liried” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
Rediake Powsar Limtea™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ryston Estate U rited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sammar SARLY france Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
Seloy Power Limitea”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
SF2 Fore Uimiteog?® UK Ordinary 100% Fiore netwark

production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name o incorporation shares  Holding activity
Singrug Hold:ings Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Singrug Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Six Hills Lare (Ragdaiel Lirnizeg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Skelbrooke Energy Lrmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Slaugniergate Lirmitea™ LIK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Sretterton Renewable Power Fuels Limited”™ LK Crdinary 100% fSuuepzp[y of biomass
Snetterton Jenewsble Power Holdings imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
sSnetterion Renewable Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Solarf | P28 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarh SPO1 SARLY France Ordinary 16C% Energy generation
Sclarh SPOZ SARLY France Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Solarfi SPO4 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfl SPOS SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sclarf) SPOR SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SP10 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Soutncormibe Farm Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
St Asaph Power Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Parkrouse Solar Limited™ UK QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
Sreadtast Rudge Solar Ltg™ UK Ordinary 1060% Energy generation
Steadfast Shipton Belirger Solar Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stellar Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Storeyhill Energy Liruted® UK Ordinary 100% Dormant comparny
SuUas tnergy Limited™ UK Crrdinary 160% Holding company
Sumnmerston Energy Lirmited?® UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Suniey Crayfern Lavant LLPY LK MNA 50% NA
Swash Fiore Contracting Lirriteg® UK Ordinary 100% Sr%ﬁur(]iit;\r’work
Swish Fiore Liruted® UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
Swish Fibre Networks Lid® UK Ordirary  100% ;irzrjulfmork
Swish Fiore Semvices Limiteg? UK Ordinary ~ 80% | 'orenetwork

praduction

Swish Fiore Yorkshire® Uik Ordinary  100% ggjuletfc‘;‘ffk
Swish “rading Limrted™ UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation, | Shares.....oMling actity v
‘ UV N Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Tne Sern Power Company Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Hotding company
Tre Hollies Salar Yarm Limseg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Troresty Estate (Budby) Lim:ted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Tillirgkam Power Limiea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Tochilis Energy Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Erergy gereration
Tredcwn marm Lt UK Ordinary 100% Erergy gereration
Turves Sola Lmitea” UK Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
UKSE 15 Solar Lirmyed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
United M.nes Energy Limites™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generatan
VCSE Lo UK Crdinary 160% g‘gju@eﬁzﬁw
Victoria Solar Lirm ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generabtion
Viners Energy Limtec UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Vi Limited” K Ordinary 100% Egdeur;{igfrk
Yoltafrance 01 SARLS France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
voltafrance 05 SAR* France Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
Voltafrance 13 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Voltafrance SARLS France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Vorboss Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Verposs Us tnc? USA Ordinary  loox 07 network
production
Watswck Green Limitad™ UK Ordinary  100% zzizgf”t vilage
wadswick Green Broperty Servces imitec” LUK Ordinary 100% 22%‘&?&2?&?(6
LK Crdinary 150% Ernergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Classof Principal '
N et e i i oo TICOTPOFAtion  shares . Holding activity e
:-.‘Veaherden Energ} L;’rV‘ui{ed"' UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation |
Wharf Fower Limitea”™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation l
Whiddon Farm Lirnitec™ UK Ord'nary 100% Energy generation f
yihinmey Hil Erergy Limated" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation '
Wincelle 50.8r Holdings Limitad™ UK Ordinary 100% Hclding company
Wolvernampton Bower Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation i
Wryde Croft Wind Farm Limged™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation .
WSE Bradford Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation ;
WESE Hullavington Halaings Limited™ lJK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE Bulavington Lirmited™ LUK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WEE Paricwali Limiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Limmited” UK Crdhinary 100% Energy generation
Zestec Asset Managernent Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

after year gr)g:l o Date
Fe;n Pccsz;r:Soiar (EBD'Lf‘f‘HeJ o e ‘ 09/08/2022 -
Cuckoc Interriet Lid 31/08/2022
v fi Digital Limited 13/07/2022
A0R Limited 22/11/2022

“Sobsidianes exempt frorm auait by virtue of s480A of the Cormpanies Act 2005
TRuns daries exempt from audi by v riue of s4/8A of the Comipanes Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dlssolved or sold durlng the year and up untut sngmng

Bﬁ rreun Ho'd ngs Lim:ted

Ridge Wnd Acquis ton Lirnited

Fern Energy LiogeWing Acguisitions Limited
Fern Energy RiageWing Heldings Limited
Fern Energy “artperships Holdings Lirnit=d
Fraistnerpe (=olding) Lirmited

DY Cldnal Energy Recovery ~mited
Comm2zl Lid

Darlinglon Point Hoicco Pry Limited
Carlmgton 2oint talar Farm Pty Lared
Carlirgton Pcint Subrcldce Pry Limited
Nordio Power Deveooment Limied
Voyrinkangas Wind Farm Oy

Saunamas Wird Farm Oy

e O G SN UV S

Date
20/07/2021
20/07/2021
14/09/2021
21/09/2021
21/69/2021
29/03/2022
13/09/2022
15/05/2022
08/07/12027
08/07/2022
0870712022
23/12/2021
23/12/2021
23/12/2021

1 ul Grzybowsxa 229, 00-131

sl

2. Pirsent Masons LLF Captat bgoare, 5
21 West Regent Street, Glasgow, Gd 1AF

4 22 rue Alprorse de Newvilie, 75077 Pans, Frarce

5 6t~ Fleor 2 Grand Canal Souare, Dublin 2, D02 A34Z Ireand
G, The Carriage Mouse. Station Works, Statior Roag, Claverdon, Warwicksnire, Unitea Kongdom, CWV3

7 Zone industriele de Courtine 115 Rue Du Mourelet 84000 Avigrion, frange

(2]

8 13 Zalisbury Place, Lordnn, Ergand, WilH LR

S The Corporater Trust Compary, Corporation Trust Center 1209 Crange Str

ﬂ;

Uritea States

LG 4th =oor Sature Court, 20 Caste Terrace, Ednburgh, Scotand, EHL 2N

The directors beueve that tre carry.ng value of the irvestrenis is sucocried oy e u-ge

=d anove g at 6th Floer, 23 Ho'born, London, Englana, E21IN ZH

o Maornson Sreet, bdinourgn, Scotland, EHZ 8BP

gel, Wimngion 19801

CHZ.0 OHH

rlying net assets

5 8PE




APPENDIX = SHARE PRICE F

ERFORMANCE (UNA

Fern's share price has performed in line with targets

i

will

be willing 10 1ssue new s

Fern Trading Limited s an unlisted compeny Evary reonth, our Board of Direc

0rs agrees a

hares The share price s unauadited.

The figures beiow include the share p

as thus entily.

of tne previcus parent (now Fern Trading G

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18
17
16
15
14
13

12 I

11
10
2012

Perforrnance s calcula
o subect o audit by Ernst & Yourg L

2013

2014

ed pase

e
T

2015

donthe sae prce for Fern's snares

e e
e
g

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

L=

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year

Jlme 2015-16

Jur‘e 20147
June 2013-14
June 2012-13

June 2011-12

15

at £ June each year The sha

\UDITED)

orce atwhich it

aroup Limied) as we,

2022

re price s

Discrete share price perfcrmance

T —

o Vb b

s G el

9.91%
4.87%
0.33%
6.23%

7 1 054
5.54%
3.83%
3.72%
3.97%
1.02%

3.98%

Source Octopus Investrnents Li

mited,

June 2022




6 | COMPANY INFORMATION
Directors and advisers

P Gte Hoor, 23 Holoorn,
_andan, Englana FCIN 27

T Artawr dzopoiited 1 Juy 2022} Independent auditors
e - nst & Young L@
BF 8 E &
SITIPANY SeLTELAry Badford House,
,%

Octopus Compary Secretanal Services Limited

Company number

12601536 :

Forward-locking statements

T

Ris Annual Report contans cerazin forward-.coking staterrens reialed o tne Corrpary's fullre Di
ana firanciai perfarmance and fuature events or develonrme-ts These stalemerts are besed on the
knowleaoe and expectations of managerment anc are ket o aed_wpu\.«ns risks ang urcartg.nties, scime
of whrich are related to factors that are beyond e conoro. of the Company Acc or;mg Y, NG assurancs Can

e given that any particular exnectation will be met and “orward-locking slatements regasding past re~ds or
wtles wil conunue i the future Past

£n 35 2 [Epresentaton mat s, 'C"u Trends or ac

actvities shouwd ro

performan ~ing n tinis Annual Report showd be

.

corsiruec as a proft forecas




